MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION NO. 11-132

Approve the Independent Audits by PMB Helin Donovan, LPP,
for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 09-50 enacted July 31, 2009, the Board of Directors established
the Audit Committee as a standing committee of the Board of Directors, consisting of all of the
members of the Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the Audit Committee is authorized by Resolution No. 09-50 and Section 16 of the
CTRMA Bylaws to exercise all powers and authority of the Board of Directors with respect to
CTRMA finances, as set forth in Resolution No. 09-50; and

WHEREAS, the firm of PMB Helin Donovan, LLP was engaged to provide independent audit of
the finances of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority for the fiscal year ending on June
30, 2011, and has presented that audit to the Audit Committee; and

WHEREAS, the Audit Committee has reviewed both the “Single Audit Report” and the
“Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis” prepared by PMB Helin
Donovan, LLP, attached respectively as Attachments A and B to this Resolution, and has heard
and considered the presentation on the audit by PMB Helin Donovan, LLP.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Audit Committee accepts the attached

independent audits of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority for the fiscal year ending
on June 30, 2011.

Adopted by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional
Mobility Authority on the 26th day of October, 2011.

Sub

pitted and reviewed by: Aw

Andrew Martin Chatles Heimsath,

General Counsel for the Chairman ProTem, Audit Committee
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority Audit Committee Resolution: 11-132

Date Passed; 10/26/11
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' PMB HelinDonovan

COMEULTANTS & DFATIFIED FUBLIC ADCOUNTANTS

CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Single Audit Report
Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Wfth Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



PMBHelinDonovan

TEATUETANTS & CRATIFIED PHDLIC ACCAURTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit Gf Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority:

We have audited the financial statements of Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
(Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 14, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A maferial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and Board of Directors
of Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

PMB HELIN DONOVAN, LLP
DRAFT
October 14, 2011
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PMB Helin Donovan

COMSULTAUTS & CERTIFIEDR CUHELIC ACDOUMYARTS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements
That Could have a Direet and Material Effect on Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-

133 and
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

To the Board of Directors
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (Authority) with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2011. The
Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
' considered necessary ih the circumstances, We bblieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis ~ *
for our opinion. OQur audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
Authority’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal confrol over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.
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2 PMB HelinDonovan

EQHANLTANTS & ECATIFIED PUDLIC ACCOUNIARTS

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above,

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2011. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the combined financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation the
finaricial statements taken as a whole. '

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and Board of Directors
of Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority, federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

i L I ] ]

PMB HELIN DONOVAN, LLP

DRAFT

October 14, 2011



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantoer / Program or Cluster Tifle CFDA. Grant Award Nomber Lxpenditures
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass Through firom Texas Department of Transporiation

Highway Planning and Construction-ARRA 20,205 C8J 0114-02-090C $ 31,107,686
Highway Planning and Construction-ARRA 20,205 C8J 0914-00-305 927,920
Highway Planning and Construction-ARRA 20,205 C8J 0114-02-053 20,292,522
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 C8J5001-14-013 718,619

Total Federal Expenditures $ 53,046,747

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(B

(c)

Reporting Entity

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule™) includes the activity
of all federal loan programs administered by Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
(the “Authority™). The Authority’s organization is defined in Note 1 of the Authority’s
basic financial statements,

Basis of Presentation
The Schedule presents total federal awards expended for each individual program in

accordance with the OMB A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Basis of Accounting
The expenditures for each of the federal financial assistance programs are presented on
the accrual basis of accounting, which is defined in Note 1 of the Authority’s basic
financial statements.

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

The amounts reported in the financial reports agree with the amounts reported in the
accompanying Schedule which is prepared on the basis explained in Note 1 of the Authority’s
financial statements.



CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results
A Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Ungualified opinion
Internal control over financial reporting:
s Material weakness(es) identified? No

¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
B. Federal Awards

Internal control over compliance:

s Material weakness(es) identified? No

» Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? None reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
Circular A-133? ! No !

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number
Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.205 Highway Planning and Construetion Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish programs: $1,591,402

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: No



CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section 1I - Financial Statement Findings
None reported

Section IIT — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None reported

Section IV —~ Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None reported
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Financial Statements and
Management Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011 and 2010
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

This section of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”) financial report presents
our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended
June 30, 2011, Please read it in conjunction with the Authority financial statements, which immediately
follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Bonds payable were issued in 2005 and have an outstanding balance of $172.8 million as of June
30, 2011. The bonds are repayable over the next 35 years.

e Bonds payable were issued in 2010 and have an outstanding balance of $140.1 million as of June
30, 2011. The bonds are repayable over the next 30 years. A portion of these proceeds were used
to refund and redeem $15 million of notes which were previously issued in 2009,

e Bonds payable were issued in 2011 and have an outstanding balance of $370.0 million as of June
30, 2011. The bonds are repayable over the next 30 years. A portion of these proceeds were used
to repay a $31.61 million loan from the State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) and $60 million of notes
which were previously issued in 2010,

s Investments increased by $212.9 million from 2010 to 2011.

o Total operating expenses were approximately $29.6 million in both 2011 and 2010.

s Total construction in progress was approximately $202.9 million, $69.0 million, and $31.9
million as of June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial section of this annual report consists of two parts: management’s discussion and analysis
(this section), and the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements,

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority’s overall
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
financial statements and provide more detailed data.

The Authority’s ﬁnanc:al statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
" accepted in the United Sfates of America (GAAP) As applied to governmental units on an accrual basis.
Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized
in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of
the Authority are included in the statements of net assets.



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY
Net Assets

The Authority’s total net assets were approximately $80.3 million, $56.1 million, and $59.5 million, as of
June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively (See Table A-1). In 2011, total assets increased 76.9% to
$886.6 million and total liabilities increased 81.2% to $806.4 million resulting in a increase of 43.0% in
total net assets. The increase of $24.1 million is the result of 2011 operating income of $35.8 million
which was offset by net interest expense of $11.9 million.

Table A-1
Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)

2011 2010 2009

Current assets $ 14,049 § 9,864 § 4,238
Restricted assets 433,409 185,367 53,837
Capital assets 423,060 295,013 265,320
Bond issuance cost 16,095 10,825 9,039
Total assets $886,613 3$501,069 $332,434
Total liabilities $806,361 $444,951 $272,934

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets $ 26,345 $ 11,916 $ 12,642
Restricted for other purposes 39,877 34,339 42,620
Unrestricted 14,030 9,863 4,238
Total net assets $ 80,252 $ 56,118 §$ 59,500




Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Changes in Net Assets

Changes in net assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 were approximately $24.1 million and ($3.4) million,
respectively, a 43% increase in total net assets from 2010. The Authority’s total revenues were $53.7
million, an increase of 104% from 2010, and total expenses were $29.6 million, which were consistent
with 2010. See Table A-2.

Table A-2
Changes in Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)
2011 2010 2009
Revenues:
Toll revenue $21,458 $20,216 $17,404
Grants and contributions 31,989 5,675 -
Other revenue 243 371 868
Total revenues 53,690 26262 18,272
Expenses:
Administration 26,970 28,081 26,635
Professional services 2,586 1,563 2,856
Total expenses 29,556 29,644 29,491
Contributed capital } ) :
Change in net assets 24,134 (3382) (11219
Total net assets, beginning of the year 56,118 59,500 70,719
Total net assets, end of the year $80,252  $56,118 $59,500

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2011, and 2010, and 2009 the Authority had invested approximately $202.9 million, $69.0
million, and $31.9 million, respectively, in construction-in-progress, including engineering fees and
preliminary costs such as funding, consulting, environmental, legal, and traffic analysis fees. See Table
A-3.

Table A-3
Capital Assets
(net of depreciation, in thousands of dollars)
2011 2010 2009
Property and equipment $9,701 $ 9,632 $9,583
Toll Road 241,474 240,135 240,005
Accumulated depreciation (31,007) (23,716) (16,135)
Construction work in progress 202,892 68,962 31,867
Net capital assets $423,060  $295,013  $265,320




Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Yeats Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Long-Term Debt

The Authority issued its Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Series 2005 Subordinate Lien
Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Series 2005 Subordinate Lien BANs) on March 2, 2005, collectively
called the Series 2005 Obligations. The Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds were issued in part as
Current Interest Bonds (Series 2005 CIBs) and in part as Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds (Series
2005 Convertible CABs),

The proceeds from the Series 2005 Obligations were used to: i) finance a portion of the costs of planning,
designing, engineering, developing, and constructing the interim phase of the 183-A Turnpike Project, ii)
pay a portion of the costs of studying, evaluating, and designing additional turnpike projects within the
Authority’s jurisdiction, iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2005 Obligations, iv) fund
a debt service reserve fund for the Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, v) provide working capital to
the Authority, and vi) pay the issuance costs of the Series 2005 Obligations.

The U.S. Department of Transportation agreed to lend the Authority up to $66 million (“TIFTIA Bond™”} to
pay or reimburse a portion of the costs of the 2005 Project, including any refinancing of the Series 2005
Subordinate Lien BANs, under a secured loan agreement between the Authority and the U.S. Depattment
of Transportation.

On January 1, 2008, the Authority borrowed the entire balance of the $66 million TIFIA Bond to pay
down the Series 2005 Subordinate Lien BANS. The maturity date of the TIFIA Bond is January 1, 2042.
Interest on the TIFIA Bond accrues at an annual rate of 4.69% with interest payable each January 1 and
July 1, commencing January 1, 2012,

The Authority issued its Revenue Notes, Taxable Series 2009, in an aggregate principal amount of
$15,000,000 (Series 2009 Notes) on May 1, 2009 to (i) pay a portion of the Costs of the 2009 Projects
described in the Indenture and (ii) pay costs of issuance for the Series 2009 Notes. The 2009 Series Notes
were refunded and redeemed in full during fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
N ] ] L] L]

The Authority issued its Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Taxable Series 2010 Suberdinate
Lien Revenue Bonds (Build America Bonds — Direct Subsidy) (Series 2010 Subordinate Lien Bonds) on
March 1, 2010, collectively called the Series 2010 Obligations. The Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds were issued in part as Current Interest Bonds (Series 2010 CIBs) and in part as Capital
Appreciation Bonds (Series 2010 CABs).

On August 1, 2010, the Authority issued its Revenue Notes, Taxable Series 2010 (Build Ametica Bonds —
Direct Subsidy) in an aggregate principal amount of $60 million (Series 2010 Notes). The proceeds were
used to: (i} pay a portion of the Costs of the 290 East Project, and (ii) pay certain Issuance Costs of the
Series 2010 Notes. The Series 2010 Notes were redeemed in full from proceeds of the Series 2011 Senior
Lien Revenue Bonds issued by the Authority in 2011, as described below.

The proceeds from the Series 2010 Obligations were used to: to (i) finance a portion of the Costs of the
183A Phase II Project, (ii) currently refund and redeem, in whole, the Authority’s ouistanding Revenue
Notes, Taxable Series 2009 (Series 2009 Notes), (iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to the Series
2010 Obligations, (iv) make a deposit to the Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Subordinate
Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, and (v) pay certain Issuance Costs of the Series 2010 Obligations.

On December 2, 2009, the Authority entered into an agreement to borrow $31.61 million from the State
Infrastructure Bank to finance the cost of right of way acquisition and partial final design funding for a
portion of the 290 Fast Project (SIB Loan), The term of the loan is 30 years. Interest on the SIB Loan

4



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

accretes at an interest rate of 2.95% per annum from December 2, 2009 until February 1, 2012, with such
interest being compounded on each February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2010. The
Authority repaid the loan in full from proceeds of the Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds issued by
the Authority in 2011, as described below.

The Authority issued its Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Series 2011 Subordinate Lien
Revenue Bonds (Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Bonds} on June 29, 2011, collectively called the Series
2011 Obligations. The Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds were issued in part as Current Interest
Bonds (Series 2011 CIBs) and in part as Capital Appreciation Bonds (Series 2011 CABs).

A portion of the proceeds from the Series 2011 Obligations was used to (i) prepay the STB Loan in full,
(ii) redeem the Series 2010 Notes in whole, (iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2011
Obligations, (iv) make a deposit to the Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Subordinate Lien
Debt Service Reserve Fund and (v) pay certain issuance costs of the Series 2011 Obligations. The
remaining proceeds of the Series 2011 Obligations will be used to finance a portion of the costs of the
Manor Expressway Phage 1T Project and as otherwise authorized in the Indenture.

As of June 30, 2011, the Authority had total bond debt outstanding of approximately $761 million. See
Table A-4.
Table A-4
Long-Term Debt
{in thousands of dollars)

2011 2010 2009
Series 2005, 2009, 2010
and 2011 Obligations
Capital Appreciation Bonds $ 61,332 § 50,833 § 16,332
Current Interest Bonds 621,542 262,208 171,680
TIFIA Bond 71,627 74,110 70,753
SIB Loan , \ - 32,153 - \
Net bond debt outstanding $760,501 $419,304 $258,765

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide interested parties with a general overview of the Authority’s
finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Central Texas Regional
Mobility Authority, 301 Congress Avenue, Suite 650, Austin, TX 78701.



PMBHelinDonovan

COMSULTARES & GERTIFIED PUDLIC ACCOHNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Members of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority:

We have audited the statements of net assets of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
(the Authority), as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Authority’s management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal confrol over financial reporting,
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, and assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Authority, as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally ageepted in the United Stgtes of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 5 be presented fo supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. The Supplemental Schedule — Bond Covenants Coverage
Calculation on page 29 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for congistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

PMB Helin Donovan, LLP
DRAFT

October 14, 2011

SR Wost Co anvard Bove Seote H000 desim BY R 40

rel B0 LRG0 e {n E 268 HRG AUSTIN - CHIGAGO « DALLAS - HOUSTON

PRI HELN BOMOVAN, 11D & MAEMPER GF RUSSHL GREOFORED MITHEMNATIOR S, SAN FRANCISCO - SEATTLE - SPOKANE



Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)

CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Investments (note 2)

Due from other agencies

Accrued interest receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)

Investments (note 2)

Total restricted assets

Staterments of Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010

Property, toll road and equipment, net (note 3)
Construction work in progress (note 3)

Bond issuance costs, net

Liabilities:

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued interest payable

Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
TIFIA bond (note 4)

State Infrastructure Loan (note 4)
Bonds payable - 2005 Series (note 4)
Bonds payable - 2010 Seties (note 4)
Bonds payable - 2011 Series (note 4)
Accumulated aceretion on capital
appreciation bonds (note 4)

Retainage payable

Net assets:

Total liabilities

Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for other purposes

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements

2011 2010

343,397 § 124,518
7,690,809 3,362,663
5,880,736 6,236,288
98,481 99,905
35,554 40,609
14,048,977 9,863,983
76,452,979 36,995,359
356,955,630 148,371,858
433,408,609 185,367,217
220,167,912 226,051,265
202,892,304 68,961,711
16,095,508 10,825,177
886,613,310 501,069,353
29,978,373 13,623,816
8,549,247 7,641,363
436,231 416,381
38,963,851 21,681,560
L] '
77,626,562 74,110,047
- 32,153,244
172,758,917 172,924,728
140,083,302 140,116,204

370,031,771 -
6,897,462 3,831,815
- 134,317
806,361,865 444,951,915
26,344,659 11,915,783
39,876,643 34,337,672
14,030,143 9,863,983
80,251,445 56,117,438
886,613,310 § 501,069,353




CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Operating Revenues
Tolls $ 21,458,000 $ 20,216,374
Grants and contributions 31,989,492 5,675,189
Other 3,383 917
Total revenues 53,450,875 25,892,480
Operating expenses
Salaries and wages 2,443,879 2,055,813
Other contractual services 3,049,833 3,232,206
Professional services 2,585915 1,563,241
General and administrative 9,601,791 10,858,442
Total operating expenses 17,681,418 17,709,702
Total operating increase 35,769,457 8,182,778
Nonoperating revenues/expenses
Interest income, net of interest capitalized, (note 2) 239,771 ' 369,867
Interest expense (11,875,221) (11,934,768)
Change in net assets 24,134,007 (3,382,123)
Total rlet assets at beginning of the year ' 56,117,438 v 59,499,561
Total net assets at end of the year $ 80,251,445 § 56,117.438

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from toll fees
Receipts from other fees
Receipts from interest income
Payments to vendors
Payments to professionals
Payments to employees
Net cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisitions of property and equipment
Payments on inferest
Acquisitions of construction in progress
Payment of State Infrastrucure Loan
Proceeds from Series 2010 Obligations
Proceeds from Series 2011 Bonds
Payment of Series 2009 Notes
Net cash flows provided by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments
Net cash flows used in provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and c¢ash equivalents at beginning of year’

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(including $76,452,979 for 2011 and $36,995,359 for
2010 reported in restricted assets)

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash nsed in operating activities:
. '

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Nonoperating interest

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets
(Increase) decrease in non-cash revenue (due from other agencies)
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2011 2010
21813552 §  14,675.345
31,992,875 5,676,106

241,195 487,929
(3,423,724) (7,689,117)
(2,585,915} (1,563,241)
(2,395308) (1,891,600)
45,642,675 9,695 422
(1,407,644) (179,063)
(7,439,500) (7,439,500)

(121,295,208) (31,094.063)

(32,943,677) .
- 175,539,243

370,031,771 i
; (15,000,000)
206,045,742 121,826,617
(394,066,109) (275,333.312)
181,154,191 163,376,679

212,911,918) (111,956,633)
39,676,499 19,565,406
37.119,877 17,554 471
76,796,376 S 37,119.877
24134007 $  (3,382,123)

7.200,997 7,580,638
7,439,500 7,439,500
5,055 2,649

355.552 (5,541,029
6,397,714 3,543,881

19,850 51,906
21,508,668 13,077,545
45,642,675 $ 9,695,422




CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011 and 2010

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Ceniral Texas Regional Authority (the Authority) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The Authority applies the cedification of Financial Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board opinions issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails, and all of the GASB pronouncements issued
subsequently. The more significant of the Authority’s accounting policies are described below:

A, Reporting Entity - The Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”) was
authorized by the State of Texas in 2002. The Authority is authorized to construct, maintain,
repair, and operate turnpike projects at locations authorized by the Legislature of the State of
Texas and approved by the State Department of Transportation. The Autharity receives its
revenues from tolls, fees, and rents from the operation of turnpike projects. The Authority
may issue revenue bonds for the purpose of paying the costs of turnpike projects.

The Authority was formed through the joint efforts of Travis and Williamson Counties (the
“Counties™). Their efforts began in September 2002, following the enactment of provisions
by the 77% Texas Legislature authorizing the formation of regional mobility authorities
(RMASg). The petition to form the Authority was filed by the Counties, and the Texas
Transportation Commission granted approval for its formation in October 2002. The Counties
appointed its initial board of directors in January 2003. Each County appointed three
directors, and the Governor appointed the presiding officer. The members are appointed in
belief that the composition of the board and the common interest in the region shared by all
board members will result in adequate representation of all political subdivisions within the
geographic area of the RMA and to serve without pay for terms of two years, The Authority

v has full control over all operations, but must comply with certain bond indentures and trust
agreements. The Authority employs an Executive Director who manages the day-to-day
operations.

In evaluating how to define the Authority, for financial reporting purposes, management has
determined that there are no entities over which the Authority exercises significant influence.
Significant influence or accountability is based primarily on operational or financial
relationships with the Authority. Since the Authority does not exercise significant influence
or accountability over other entities, it has no component units.

Liguidity - During year ending June 30, 2011, the Company reported revenue of $53.5
million, and a change in net assets of approximately $24.1 million. Management believes
that it has cash on hand, anticipated 2012 operating results, and available credit facilities that
are sufficient to fund its operations through June 30, 2012.

B. Basis of Accounting - The operations of the Authority are accounted for as an enterprise
fund on an accruat basis in order to recognize the flow of economic resources. Under this
basis, revenues are recognized in the peried in which they are earned, expenses are
recognized in the period in which they are incurred, depreciation of assets is recognized, and
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010
(Continued)

all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are included in the
Statements of Net Assets. Operating expenses for the Authority include the costs of operating
the turnpikes, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less form the date of acquisition. These deposits are fully collateralized or covered by
federal deposit insurance.

Investments are reported at fair value, The net change in fair value of investments is recorded
on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and includes the
unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments.

Compensated Absences - Vested or accumulated vacation leave is recorded as an expense
and a liability as the benefits accrue to employees. There are no accumulating sick leave
benefits that vest for which any liability must be recognized.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets,
are reported at cost. Capital assets are defined as assets with initial, individual costs
exceeding $500 to $20,000 depending on asset category. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Roads and bridges, 40 years
Improvemenits, 5-20 vears
Buildings, 20-30 years
Equipment, 3-7 years

A full monthis depreciation is taken in the month an asset is placed in service. When property,
and equipment are disposed, depreciation is removed from the respective accounts, and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recorded in operations.

Prior to the reclassification of the construction-in-progress related to the 183-A toll road to
property and equipment, the majority of capitalized costs for the year ended June 30, 2011
and 2010 related to construction-in-progress. During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, computer
and other types of equipment were obtained and depreciated using the straight-line method
over periods ranging from 3 to 7 years.

The Authority capitalizes interest cost of restricted tax-exempt borrowings less any interest
earned on temporary investment of the proceeds of those borrowings from the date of
borrowing until the specified qualifying assets acquired with those borrowings are ready for
their intended use.

In addition, the Authority recognizes revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets relating to
earnings from restricted grants.
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010
(Continued)

Grants and Contraets - Revenues include charges paid by a related party for a sublease
confract agreement. Revenues on grants and contributions including right-of-way property
that is restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
The Authority considers all grant and coniributions to be 100% collectible.

Investments - The Authority invests funds in accordance with its investment policy, bond
indentures, and the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. Investments are carried at fair value,
Fair value is defined as the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fair
value is determined typically by quoted market prices.

Restricted Assets - Certain proceeds of the Authority’s bonds and grants, as well as certain
other resources, are clagsified as restricted assets in the statement of net asset because they
are maintained in separate investment accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond
covenants and grant agreements. The Authority’s policy is to first apply restricted resources
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available,

Income Taxes - The Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Texas. As such, income
earned in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from state or federal
income taxes. Bond obligations issued by state and local governments are tax-exempt only if
the issuers pay rebate to the federal government of the earnings on the investment of the
proceeds of a tax-exempt issue in excess of the yield on such obligations and any income
earned on such excess.

Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs - The Authority amortizes premiums and
discounts over the estimated life of the bonds as an adjustment to capitalized interest. Bond
issuance cost is amortized over the estimated life of the bonds. In the years ended June 30,
2011 and 2010, the,Authority amortized $298,307 and $288,547 of, issuvance costs,
respectively.

Classification of Operating and Non-operating Revenue and Fxpenses - The Authority
defines operating revenues and expenses as those revenues and expenses generated by a
specified program offering either a good or service. This definition is consistent with the
codification of Government and Financial Reporting Standards which defines operating
receipts as cash receipts from customers and other cash receipts that do not result from
transactions defined as capital and related financing, non-capital financing or investing
activities.

Estimates ~ The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Examples of management’s use of estimates
and assumptions include, but are not limited to, depreciable lives and estimated residual value
of property and equipment, amortization period of deferred costs, and the valuation of
investments.
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010
{Continued)

M. Subsequent Events - The Authority evaluates events that occur subsequent to the statement
of financial position date of periodic reports, but before financial statements are issued for
periods ending on such dates, for possible adjustment to such financial statements or other
disclosure. This evaluation generafly occurs through the date at which the Authority’s
financial statements are issued. For the financial statements as of and for the year ending June
30, 2011, this date was October 14, 2011,

Cash and Investments

Deposit and investment resources are exposed to risks that have the potential to result in losses
that could impact the delivery of the Authority’s services.

The Authority’s Board has adopted an Investment Policy to set forth the factors involved in the
management of investment assets for the Authority. The Authority seeks to mitigate risk by
investing in compliance with the investment policy, qualifying the broker or financial institution
with whom the Authority will transact, maintain sufficient collateralization, portfolio
diversification, and limiting maturity.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Authority had the following investments:

Summary of Investments by Type 2011 2010
TexSTAR Investment Pool $ 31,106,287 40,365,479
Certificates of Deposit 3,100,000 3,100,000
Guaranteed Investment Contract 266,522,987 100,209,006
U.S. Government Agency securities:

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 63,917,165 8,060,036
Total investments $ 364,646,439 151,734,521

] ] ¥

Unrestricted investments $ 7,690,809 3,362,663
Restricted investments 356,955,630 148,371,858
Total investments h 364,646,439 151,734,521
Interest income $ 239,771 369,867
Total investment income $ 239,771 369,867
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010
(Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover its collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. While the Board has
no formal policy specific to custodial credit risk, operating bank accounts are fully collateralized
with pledged securities.

At June 30, 2011, the carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents was
$76,796,376. The bank balance was $350,931 as of June 30, 2011. The remaining amount was
maintained in money market accounts. At June 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the Authority’s
cash and cash equivalents was $37,119,877. The bank balance was $139,977 as of June 30, 2010.
The remaining amount is maintained in money market accounts.

There is no limit on the amount the Authority may deposit in any one institution. The Authority
is fully collateralized with pledged securities for amounts in excess of the FDIC limit for the year
ended June 30, 2011.

Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed to
custodial risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the Authority, and
are held by the counterparty, its trust or agent, but not in the Authority’s name. The Authority’s
investment securities are not exposed to custodial credit risk because all securities are held by the
vAuthority’s custodial bank in the Authority’s name. \

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Authority’s
investment in a single issuer. The Authority is authorized to invest funds in accordance with its
investment policy, bond indenfures, and the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. Authorized
investments include, but are not limited to: U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency issues, certificates
of deposit issued by a state or national bank domiciled in the State of Texas, repurchase
agreements collateralized by 11.S. Treasury or Federal Agency securities, guaranteed investment
contracts (GICs), obligations of states and municipalities, SEC registered no-load money market
mutual funds, and local government investment funds. The Authority’s investments are insured or
registered and are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority’s name.

With regards to investment composition, the Authority’s investment policy currently states that
local government investment pools may not exceed 80% of the total investment portfolio less
bond funds. Bond funds may be invested at 100% of total investment portfolio.  No other
parameters for investment composition are stated in the approved investment policy.
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010
{Continued)

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Authority’s portfolio consisted of the following:

2011 2010
TexSTAR Investment Pool 8.5% 26.6%
Certificates of Deposit 0.9% 2.0%
Guaranteed Investment Contracts 73.1% 66.0%

United States Government Agency securities 17.5% 5.3%

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Interest rate risk may be mitigated by investing operating funds primarily in
shorter term securities, money market funds or similar investment pools and limiting the average
maturity of the portfolio.

The Authority’s investment policy notes that with regard to maximum maturities, the Authority
will attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to
a specific cash flow, the Authority will not directly invest operating or general funds in securities
maturing more than sixteen months from the date of purchase, uniess approved by the Authority’s
Board. Investment of bond proceeds shall not exceed the projected expenditure schedule of the
related project. Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding twelve months if the
maturities of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use
of the funds,

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, all of the Authority’s investments mature within one year. The
weighted average maturity of the TexSTAR Investment Pool at June 30, 2011 and 2010 was 46
days and 47 days, respectively.

|} ] ] ]
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk than an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations to the Authority. To help mitigate credit risk, credit quality guidelines are
incorporated into the investment policy, as follows:

» Limiting investments to the safest types of securities, as listed above under the
‘Concentration of Credit Risk” section; and

» DPre-qualifying the financial institutions, brokers/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors
with which the Authority will do business

The TexSTAR Investment Pool is rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s and is fully collateralized
and maintains a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, with a maximum maturity of 13
months for any individual security. The amounts can be withdrawn with limited notice. The
United States government agency securities are obligations of the U.S. government or obligations
explicitly guaranteed by the 1.S. government and are not considered to have credit risk.
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

3. Capital Assets

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011 and 2010
(Continued)

The following schedule summarizes the capital assets of the Authority as of June 30, 2011 and

2010:

Property, toll road and equipment as of June 30, 2011:

Additions/
2010 Disposals Reclass 2011
Property and equipment $ 9,632,022 69,284 - § 9,701,306
Toll Road
Building and toll facilities 7,062,332 - - 7,062,332
Highways and bridges 198,281,337 - - 198,281,337
Toll equipment 4,382,721 - - 4,382,721
Signs 5,630,643 - - 5,630,643
Land improvements 1,094,546 338,360 - 1,432,906
Right of way 23,683,551 1,000,000 - 24,683,551
Accumulated depreciation {23,715,887) (7,290,997) - (31,006,884)
Net property and equipment $ 226,051,265 (5,883,353) - § 220,167,912
Property, toll road and equipment as of June 30, 2010:
Additions/
2009 Disposals Reclass 2010
Property and equipment 3 9,582,667 49,355 - 8 9,632,022
Toll Road
Building and toll facilities 7,062,332 - - 7,062,332
Highways and bridges . 198,169,868 , 111,469 - 198,281,337
Toll equipment 4,382,721 - - 4,382,721
Signs 5,630,643 - - 5,630,643
Land improvements 1,078,913 15,633 - 1,094,546
Right of way 23,680,945 2,606 - 23,683,551
Accumulated depreciation {16,135,249) (7,580,638) - (23,715,887)
Net property and equipment $ 233,452,840 (7,401,575) - $ 226,051,265
Congstruction in progress as of June 30, 2011:
Additions/
2010 Disposals Reclass 2011
Construction in progress
Preliminary costs $ 48,231,054 122,040,776 $ 170,271,830
Engineering 8,277 (8,277) -
Construction 17,345,528 2,385,293 19,730,821
Collection system 69,828 - 69,828
Capitalized interest 3,307,024 9,512,801 12,819,825
Net construction in progress $ 68,961,711 133,930,593 $ 202,892,304
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Continued)

Construction in progress as of June 30, 2010:

Construction in progress
Preliminary costs
Engineering
Construction
Collection system
Capitalized interest

Net construction in progress

Additions/

2009 Disposals Reclass 2010
$ 16,222,995 32,008,059 - 3 48,231,054
215,177 (206,900) - 8,277
15,365,680 1,979,848 - 17,345,528
62,841 6,987 - 69,828
- 3,307,024 - 3,307,024
§ 31,866,693 37,095,018 - 8 68,961,711

Deprecia’cion expense for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was §7,290,997 and $7,580,638,
respectively, No retirements of capital assets occurred during the years ended June 30, 2011 and

2010.

Capitalized interest consists of the following as of June 30, 2011:

Interest accrued on bonds

Plus: bond issuance cost amortization

Interest expense capitalized

Less: cumulative interest earned
on bond proceeds invested

4, Bonds Payable

Capitalized
Interest

$

$

13,539,803
287,171

13,826,974
(1,007,149)

12,819,825

] L] ]
The following schedule summarizes the bonds payable as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Bonds Payable as of June 30, 2011:

Series 2005 Bonds
TTFTA Bond

Series 2010 Obligations
State Infrastructure
Bank TLoan

Series 2010 Taxable
Revenue Note (Interim
Financing)

Series 2011 Obligations
Total

Additions/

2010 Amortization Payments 2011
$ 172,924,728 (165,811) - 5 172,758,917
74,110,047 3,516,515 - 77,626,562
140,116,204 (32,902) 140,083,302
32,153,244 790,433 (32,943.677) -
- 60,163,333 (60,163,333) -
- 370,031,771 - 370,031,771
$ 419,304,223 434,303,339 (93,107,010) $ 760,500,552
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(Continued)
Bonds Payable as of June 30, 2010:
Additions/
2009 Amortization Payments 2010

Series 2005 Bonds $ 173,082,981 (158,253) - $ 172,924,728
TIFIA Bond 70,752,832 3,357,215 - 74,110,047
Series 2009 Taxable

Revenue Note 14,929,167 - (14,929,167) -
Series 2010 Obligations - 140,116,204 140,116,204
State Infrastructure

Bank Loan - 32,153,244 32,153,244
Total $ 258,764,980 175,468,410 (14,929,167) $§ 419,304,223

Series 2005 Obligations

The Authority issued its Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds on March 2, 2005, The Series
2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds were issued in part as Current Interest Bonds (Series 2005
CIBs) and in part as Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds (Series 2005 Convertible CABs).

The proceeds from the Series 2005 Obligations were used to: i) finance a portion of the costs of
planning, designing, engineering, developing, and constructing the interim phase of the 183-A
Turnpike Project, ii) pay a portion of the costs of studying, evaluating, and designing additional
turnpike projects within the Authority’s jurisdiction, iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to
the Series 2005 Obligations, iv) fund a debt service reserve fund for the Series 2005 Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, v) provide working capitai to the Authority, and vi) pay the issuance costs of the
Series 2005 Obligations.

The Series 2005 CIBs are scheduled to mature on the dates and in the principal amounts shown
below. Interest on the Series 2005 CIBs is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months at the interest rdtes shown below. Interest'on the 2005 CIBs is payable on each July 1
and January 1, commencing July 1, 2005.

The Series 2005 Convertible CABs are scheduled to mature on the dates shown below at an
aggregated maturity amount of $24,010,000. As of June 30, 2011, the aggregate maturity amount
is $21,063,781.

The principal amounts shown below for the Series 2005 Convertible CABs represent the total
amount of outstanding principal plus the accreted and compounded interest as of June 30, 2011.

Interest on the Series 2005 Convertible CABs will accrete from the date of initial delivery until
January 1, 2014 at the interest rates noted below and will compound on each July 1 and January
1, commencing July 1, 2005, and on January 1, 2014. From and after January 1, 2014, interest on
the maturity amount of the Series 2005 Convertible CABs will accrue at the interest rates noted
below and will be payable each July 1 and January 1.

Under the bond indenture relating to the Series 2005 Obligations, the debt service reserve fund
for the Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds requires an amount equal to the least of i) the
maximum annual debt service of all outstanding senior lien obligations, ii) 1.25 times the average
annual debt service of all outstanding senior lien obligations, or iii) ten percent of the aggregate
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amount of the outstanding senior lien obligations, as determined on the date each seties of senior
lien obligations iz issued.

Unamaortized
Maturity  Interest Outstanding Premium
Description January 1 Rate Principal (Discount) Total
Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2015 420% § 1,593,394 & - 5 1,593,394
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2016 4.25% 3,124,749 - 3,124,749
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2017 4.35% 2,738,819 - 2,738,819
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2018 4.45% 2,423,743 - 2,423,743
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2019 4.50% 2,177,004 - 2,177,004
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2020 4.55% 1,969,370 - 1,969,370
Convertible Capital Apptreciation Bonds 2021 4.60% 2,305,532 - 2,305,532
Total Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 16,332,611 - 16,332,611
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2012 5.00% 1,495,000 12,530 1,507,530
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2013 5.00% 2,720,000 60,679 2,780,679
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2014 3.50% 3,100,000 (5,995) 3,094,005
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2022 3.00% 3,260,000 171,204 3,431,204
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2023 5.00% 3,115,000 161,434 3,276,434
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2024 5.00% 2,995,000 150,319 3,145,319
Current Interest Term Bonds 2025 4.50% 2,950,000 {16,709} 2,933,291
_ Current Interest Term Bonds 2026 4.50% 4,235,000 (24,494) 4,210,506
Current Interest Term Bonds 2027 4.50% 4,280,000 (23,216) 4,254,784
Current Interest Term Bonds 2028 4,50% 3,815,000 (22,848) 3,792,152
Current Interest Term Bonds 2029 4.50% 3,870,000 (23,521) 3,846,479
Current Interest Term Bonds 2030 5.00% 3,930,000 157,745 4,087,745
Current Interest Term Bonds 2031 5.00% 5,200,000 211,251 5,411,251
Current Interest Term Bonds 2032 5.00% 5,250,000 215,624 5,465,024
Current Interest Term Bohds 2035 5.00% 5,315,000 220455 ' 5,535.455
Current Interest Term Bonds 2034 5.00% 5,395,000 225,308 5,024,808
Current Interest Term Bonds 2035 5.00% 5,490,000 231,693 5,721,693
Current Interest Term Bonds 2036 5.00% 7,170,000 253,030 7,423,030
Current Interest Term Bonds 2037 5.00% 7,320,000 260,116 7,580,116
Current Interest Term Bonds 2038 5.00% - 7,485,000 267,686 7,732,686
Current Interest Term Bonds 2039 5.00% 7,670,000 275,919 7,945,919
Current Interest Term Bonds 2040 5.00% 7,875,000 284,843 8,159,843
Current Interest Term Bonds 2041 5.00% 9,000,000 327,180 9,327,180
Current Interest Term Bonds 2042 5.00% 9,245,000 337,663 9,582,663
Current Interest Term Bonds 2043 5.00% 9,520,000 349,227 9,869,227
Current Interest Term Bonds 2044 5.00% 9,810,000 361,326 10,171,326
Current Inferest Term Bonds 2045 5.00% 10,125,000 374,357 10,499,357
Total Current Inferest Bonds 151,635,000 4,791,306 156,426,306
Total Series 2003 Senior Licn Revenue Bonds $ 167,967,611 § 4,791,306 $ 172,758,917

The amount of accumulated accreted interest on the Series 2005 Convertible CABs as of June 30,
2011 is set forth in the following table. 'The accumulated accreted interest is added to the
outstanding principal on July 1 and January 1 of each year beginning July 1, 2005,
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Maturity  Interest Outstanding Accumulated
Description January 1 Rate Principal Accretion Total
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2015 4.20% 1,593,394 436,968 § 2,030,362
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2016 4.25% 3,124,749 868,310 3,993,059
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2017 4.35% 2,738,819 781,111 3,519,930
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2018 4.45% 2,423,743 709,058 3,132,801
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2019 4.50% 2,177,004 644,936 2,821,940
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2020 4.55% 1,969,370 590,694 2,560,064
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 2021 4.60% 2,305,532 700,093 3,005,625
Total Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds $ 16,332,611 § 4,731,170 § 21,063,781

Series 2010 Obligations

The Authority issued its Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Taxable Series 2010
Subordinate Lien Revenue Build America Bonds (Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs) on March
1, 2010, collectively called the Series 2010 Obligations. The Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds were issued in part as Current Inferest Bonds (Series 2010 CIBs) and in patt as Capital
Appreciation Bonds (Series 2010 CABs),

The proceeds from the Series 2010 Obligations were used to: to (i} finance a portion of the Costs
of the 183A Phase II Project, (i) currently refund and redeem, in whole, the Authority’s
outstanding Revenue Notes, Taxable Series 2009 (Series 2009 Notes), (iii) pay capitalized
interest with respect to the Series 2010 Obligations, (iv) make a deposit to the Senior Lien Debt
Service Reserve Fund and the Subordinate Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, and (v) pay certain
Issuance Costs of the Series 2010 Obligations.

The Series 2010 CIBs are scheduled to mature on the dates and in the principal amounts shown
below, Interest on the Series 2010 CIBs is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months at the interest rates shown below. Intefest on the 2010 CIBs is payable on each July 1
and January 1, commencing July 1, 2010,

The Series 2010 CABs are scheduled to mature on the dates shown below at an aggregated
maturity amount of $176,120,000. As of June 30, 2011, the aggregate maturity amount is
$37,166,002.

The principal amounts shown below for the Series 2010 CABs represent the total amount of
outstanding principal plus the accreted and compounded intetest as of June 30, 2011.

Interest on the Series 2010 CABs will accrete from the date of initial delivery to stated maturity at
the interest rates noted below and will compound on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July
1, 2010. Such accreted and compounded interest will be paid as part of the maturity amount at
stated maturity.

The Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs are scheduled to mature on the date and in the principal
amount shown below. Interest on the Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs is calculated on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months at the interest rates shown below. Interest on
the 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July 1,
2010.
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On August 1, 2010, the Authority issued its Revenue Notes, Taxable Series 2010 (Build America
Bonds — Direct Subsidy) in an aggregate amount of $60 million (Series 2010 Notes), The
proceeds were used to: (i) pay a portion of the Costs of the 290 East Project, and (ii) pay certain
Issuance Costs of the Series 2010 Notes. The Series 2010 Notes were redeemed in full from
proceeds of the Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds issued by the Authority in 2011, as
described below.

Under the bond indenture relating to the Series 2010 Obligations, the debt service reserve fund
for the Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds requires an amount equal to the least of i) the
maximum annual debt service of all outstanding senior lien obligations, ii) 1.25 times the average
annual debt service of all outstanding senior lien obligations, or iii) ten percent of the aggregate
- amount of the outstanding senior lien obligations, as determined on the date each series of senior
“lien obligations is issued. The debt service reserve fund for the Series 2010 Subordinate Lien
BABs requires an amount equal to the amounts set forth in the supplemental indenture relating

thereto.
Unamortized
Maturity Interest Outstanding Premium
Description January 1 Rate Principal (Discount}) Total
Series 2010 Sentor Lien Revenue Bonds

Capital Appreciation Bonds 2025 720% 3 3,158,010 % - 5 3,158,010
Capital Appreciaiion Bonds 2026 7.30% 3,516,022 - 3,516,022
Capital Appreciation Bonds ) 2027 7.40% 3,264,322 ) - 3,264,322
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2028 7.48% 3,171,378 - 3,171,378
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2029 7.56% 2,932,886 - 2,932,886
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2030 7.65% 2,702,667 - 2,702,667
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2031 7.71% 2,254,554 - 2,254,554
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2032 7.77% 2,103,884 - 2,103,884
Capital Appreciation Bonds 7033 7.78% 1,980,266 . 1,980,266
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2034 7.79% 1,860,557 - 1,860,557
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2035 7.80% 1,745,753 - 1,745,753
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2036 7.81% 1,418,625 - 1,418,625
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2037 7.82% 1,337,508 - 1,337,508
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2038 7.83% 1,258,995 - 1,258,995
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2039 7.84% 1,183,406 - 1,183,406
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2040 7.85% 1,110,877 - 1,110,877

Total Capital Appreciation Bonds 34,999,710 - 34,999,710
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2015 5.75% 140,000 6,809 146,809
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2017 5.75% 1,620,000 57,799 1,677,799
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2018 5.75% 3,475,000 100,423 3,575,423
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2019 5.75% 5,310,000 116,661 5,426,661
Current Interest Setial Bonds 2020 5.75% 7,240,000 111,771 7,351,771
Current Interest Term Bonds 2021 5.75% 8,530,000 (37,500) 8,492,500
Current Interest Term Bonds 2022 5.75% 9,365,000 (41,831) 9,323,169
Current Interest Term Bonds 2023 3.75% 10,215,000 (46,265) 10,168,735
Current Interest Term Bonds 2024 5.75% 11,075,000 (50,782) 11,024,218
Current Inferest Term Bonds 2025 3.75% 2,910,000 (13,493) 2,806,507

Total Current Interest Bonds 59,880,000 203,592 60,083,592
Total Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 94,879,710 203,562 95,083,302
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Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs

Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs {Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordipate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate}

Total Subordinate Lien BABs (Fixed Rate) -

Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Raie)
Subordipate Lien BABs (Variable Raie) ,
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate})
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Licn BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)

Total Subordinate Lien BABs (Variable Rate)
Total Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs
Total Series 2010 Obligations

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011 and 2010
{Continued)

2015 11.625%
2016 11.625%
2017 11.625%
2018 11.625%
2019 11.625%
2020 11.625%
2021  11.625%
2022 11.625%
2023 11.625%
2024 11.625%
2025 11.625%
2026 11.625%
2027 11.625%
2028 11.625%
2029 11.625%
2030 11.625%
2031 11.625%
2032 11.625%
2033 11.625%
2034 11.625%
2035 11.625%
2036 11.625%
2037 11.625%
2038 11.625%
2039 11.625%
2040 11.625%

2015 variable
2016  variable
2017  variable
2018  variable
2019 variable
2020  variable
2021 variable
2022 variable
2023 variable
2024  variable
2025 variable
2026 variable
2027 variable
2028 variable
2029 variable
2030  variable
2031 variable
2032 variable
2033 variablg
2034  variable
2035 variable
2036 variable
2037 variable
2038 variable
2039 variable
2040 variable

$

395,000 . 395,000
425,000 . 425,000
460,000 . 460,000
490,000 . 490,000
530,000 - 530,000
570,000 . 570,000
610,000 . 610,000
660,000 - 660,000
710,000 - 710,000
760,000 - 760,000
820,000 - 820,000
880,000 . 880,000
950,000 . 950,000
1,020,000 . 1,020,000
1,095,000 . 1,095,000
1,180,000 - 1,180,000
1,270,000 - 1,270,000
1,455,000 . 1,455,000
1,660,000 - 1,660,000
1,880,000 - 1,880,000
2,125,000 . 2,125,000
2,385,000 . 2,385,000
2,675,000 . 2,675,000
2,985,000 - 2,985,000
3,320,000 3,320,000
3,690,000 - 3,690,000
35,000,000 - 35,000,000
110,000 - 110,000
120,000 - 120,000
130,000 - 130,000
140,000 - 140,000
150,000 - 150,000
165,000 - 165,000
175,000 . 175,000,
190,000 - 190,000
205,000 - 205,000
225,000 - 225,000
240,000 - 240,000
260,000 - 260,000
285,000 . 285,000
305,000 - 305,000
330,000 - 330,000
360,000 - 360,000
385,000 - 385,000
420,000 . 420,000
455,000 - 455,000
515,000 . 515,000
590,000 . 590,000
665,000 - 665,000
750,000 . 750,000
840,000 - 840,000
940,000 940,000
1,050,000 . 1,050,000
10,000,000 10,000,000
45,000,000 45,000,000
139,879,710 $ 203,592 § 140,083,302
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The amount of accumulated accreted interest on the Series 2010 CABs as of June 30, 2011 is set
forth in the following table. The accumulated accrefed interest is added to the outstanding

principal on July | and January 1 of each year beginning July 1, 2010.

Maturity ~ Interest Outstanding Accumulated
Description January 1 Rate Principal Accretion Total
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2025 T.20% 3,158,010 185,220 § 3,343,230
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2026  7.30% 3,516,022 209,118 3,725,140
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2027 TA0% 3,264,322 196,825 3,461,147
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2028 T48% 3,171,378 193,228 3,364,606
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2020  7.56% 2,932,886 180,678 3,113,564
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2030 7.65% 2,702,667 168,566 2,871,233
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2031 771% 2,254,554 141,658 2,396,212
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2032 17T% 2,103,384 133,302 12,237,186
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2033 7.78% 1,980,266 125,658 2,105,924
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2034 7.79% 1,860,557 118,193 1,978,750
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2035  7.80% 1,745,753 111,025 1,856,778
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2036 7.81% 1,418,625 90,361 1,508,986
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2037 7.82% 1,337,508 85,208 1,422,716
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2038 7.83% 1,258,993 80,445 1,339,440
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2039 7.84% 1,183,406 75,698 1,259,104
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2040 7.85% 1,110,877 71,109 1,181,986
Total Capital Appreciation Bonds § 34999710 § 2,166,292  § 37,166,002

TIFIA Bond

The U.S. Department of Transportation agreed to lend the Authority up to $66 million to pay or
reimburse a portion of the costs of the 2005 Project, including any refinancing of the Series 2005
Subordinate Lien BANs, under a secured loan agreement between the Authority and the U.S.
Department of Transportation. OnyMarch 2, 2005, the Authority issued its 2005 TIFTIABond to
evidence its obligation to repay any borrowing under such secured loan agreement.

On January 1, 2008, the Authority borrowed the entire balance of $66 million to pay down the
Series 2005 Subordinate Lien BANS, The maturity date of the TIFIA Bond s January 1, 2042,
Interest on the TIFIA bond accrues at an annual rate of 4.69% with interest payable each January
1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2012. As of June 30, 2011, the Authority had a total of
$11,626,561 of interest accrued on the $66,000,000 balance for a total of $77,626,562 in
outstanding principal and interest. As of June 30, 2010, the Authority had a total of $8,110,047
of interest accrued on the $66,000,000 balance for a total of $74,110,047 in outstanding principal
and interest.

State Infrastructure Bank Loan

On December 2, 2009, the Authority entered into an agreement to borrow $31.61 million from the
State Infrastructure Bank to finance the cost of right of way acquisition and partial final design
funding for a portion of the 290 East Project (SIB Loan). The term of the loan is 30 years.
Interest on the SIB Loan accretes at an interest rate of 2.95% per annum from December 2, 2009
until Febroary 1, 2012, with such interest being compounded on each February 1 and August 1,
commencing February 1, 2010.
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As of June 30, 2010, the balance of the SIB Loan was $32,153,244 which included $543,244 of
accrued interest. As of June 30, 2011, the SIB Loan was paid in full from a porticn of the
proceeds of the Series 2011 Obligations, as described below.

Series 2011 Obligations

The Authority issued its Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Series 2011 Subordinate
Lien Revenue Bonds (Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Bonds) on June 29, 2011, collectively called
the Series 2011 Obligations. The Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds were issued in part as
Current Interest Bonds (Series 2011 CIBs) and in part as Capital Appreciation Bonds (Series
2011 CABs).

A portion of the proceeds from the Series 2011 Obligations was used to (i) prepay the SIB Loan
in full, (ii) redeem the Series 2010 Notes in whole, (iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to the
Series 2011 Obligations, (iv) make a deposit to the Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and
the Subordinate Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and (V) pay certain issuance costs of the Series
2011 Obligations. The remaining proceeds of the Series 2011 Obligations will be used to finance
a portion of the costs of the Manor Expressway Phase IT Project and as otherwise authorized in
the Indenture. :

The Series 2011 CIBs are scheduled to mature on the dates and in the principal amounts shown
below. Interest on the Series 2011 CIBs is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
- day months at the interest rates shown below, Interest on the Series 2011 CIBs is payable on
each July 1 and January 1, commencing January 1, 2012.

The Series 2011 CABs are scheduled to mature on the dates shown below at an aggregated
maturity amount of $22,130,000. As of June 30, 2011, the aggregate maturity amount is
$9,999,944.

] L] L)
The principal amounts shown below for the Series 2011 CABs represent the total amount of
outstanding principal plus the accreted and compounded interest as of June 30, 2011,

Interest on the Series 2011 CABs will acerete from the date of initial delivery to stated maturity at
the interest rates noted below and will compound on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July
1, 2011. Such accreted and compounded interest will be paid as part of the maturity amount at
stated maturity,

The Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Bonds are scheduled to mature on the date and in the principal
amount shown below. Interest on the Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Bonds is calculated on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months at the interest rate shown below. Interest on the
Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Bonds is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing
January 1, 2012,

Under the bond indenture relating to the Series 2011 Obligations, the debt service reserve tfund
for the Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds requires an amount equal to the least of i) the
maximum annual debt service of all outstanding senior lien obligations, i} 1.25 times the average
annual debt service of all outstanding senior lien obligations, or iii) ten percent of the aggregate
amount of the outstanding senior lien obligations, as determined on the date each series of senior
lien obligations is issued. The debt service reserve fund for the Series 2011 Subordinate Lien
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Bonds requires an amount equal to the least of i) the maximum annual debt service on the Series
2011 Subordinate Lien Bonds, ii) 1.25 times the average annual debt service on the Series 2011
Subordinate Lien Bonds, or iii) ten percent of the stated principal amount of the Series 2011

Subordinate Lien Bonds.

Unamortized
Maturity Interest Outstanding Premium
Description January 1 Rate Principal (Discount) Total
Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds

Capital Appreciation Bonds 2022 590% 3% 480,449 - 480,449
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2023 6.10% 1,368,357 - 1,868,357
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2024 6.25% 3,346,475 - 3,346,475
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2025 6.40% 3,183,732 - 3,183,732
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2026 6.50% 1,120,931 - 1,120,931
Total Capital Appreciation Bonds 9,996,944 - 9,999,944

Current Interest Term Bonds 2026 5.75% 4,630,000 (3,446,624) 1,183,370
Current Interest Term Bonds 2027 5.75% 7,725,000 (219,317) 7,505,683
Current Interest Term Bonds 2028 5.75% 8,170,000 (211,495) 7,958,505
Current Interest Term Bonds 2029 5.75% 8,645,000 (203,165) 8,441,835
Current Interest Term Bonds 2030 5.75% 9,140,000 (194,320) 8,945,680
Current Interest Term Bonds 2031 5.75% 9,665,000 (184,803) 9,480,197
Current Interest Term Bonds 2032 6.00% 10,225,000 (174,380) 10,050,120
Current Interest Term Bonds 2033 6.00% 10,835,000 (164,524) 10,670,476
Current Interest Term Bonds 2034 6.00% 11,485,000 (153,579) 11,331,421
Current Interest Term Bonds 2035 6.00% 12,175,000 (142,163) 12,032,837
Current Interest Serial Bonds 2036 6.00% 12,905,000 (130,259) 12,774,741
Current Interest Term Bonds 2037 6.00% 13,675,000 (117,708) 13,557,292
Current Interest Term Bonds 2038 6.00% 14,500,000 (104,622) 14,395,378
Current Interest Term Bonds 2039 6.00% 15,365,000 (90,842) 15,274,158
Current Interest Term Bonds 040 6.00% 16,590,0()0 (76,481) 16,213,519
Current Interest Term Bonds 2041 6.00% 27,560,000 (98,169) 27,461,831
Current Interest Term Bonds 2042 6.25% 15,980,000 (41,544) 15,938,456
Current Interest Term Bonds 2043 6.25% 17,165,000 (33,343) 17,131,657
Current Interest Term Bonds 2044 6.25% 18,425,000 {24,541) 18,400,459
Current Interest Term Bonds 2045 6.25% 19,750,000 (15,105) 19,734,895
Current Interest Term Bonds 2046 6.25% 31,620,000 (70,689) 31,549,311
Total Cutrent Interest Bonds 295,930,000 (5,898,173) 290,031,827

Total Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 305,929,944 (5,898,173) 300,031,771
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2023 6.75% 700,000 - 700,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2024 6.75% 1,900,000 - 1,900,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2025 6.75% 2,300,000 - 2,300,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2026 6.75% 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2027 6.75% 2,700,000 - 2,700,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2028 6.75% 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2029 6.75% 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2030 6.75% 3,200,000 - 3,200,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2031 6.75% 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2032 6.75% 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2033 6.75% 3,700,000 - 3,700,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2034 6.75% 3,900,000 - 3,500,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2035 6.75% 4,000,000 - 4,600,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2036 6.75% 4,100,000 - 4,100,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2037 6.75% 4,300,000 - 4,300,000
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Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2038 6.75% 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2039 6.75% 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2040 6.75% 4,700,000 - 4,700,000
Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 2041 6.75% 10,100,000 - 10,100,000
Total Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Term Bonds 70,000,000 - 70,000,000
Total Series 2011 Obligations $ 375,929.944 % (5,898,173) $ 370,031,771

The amount of accumulated accreted interest on the Series 2011 CABs as of June 30, 2011 is set
forth in the following table. The accumulated accreted interest is added to the outstanding
principal on July 1 and January | of each year beginning July 1, 2011.

Maturity  Interest Outstanding Accumulated
Description Janpary 1 Rate Principal Accretion Total
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2022 5.90% $ 480,449 § - 3 480,449
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2023 6.10% 1,868,357 - 1,868,357
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2024 6.25% 3,346,475 - 3,346,475
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2025 6.40% 3,183,732 - 3,183,732
Capital Appreciation Bonds 2026 6.50% 1,120,931 - 1,120,931
Total Capital Appreciation Bonds $ 9,999944 § -~ 3 9,999,944

Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 Obligations, Series 2011 Obligations and
TIFIA Bond

Future payments of principal and interest on the Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series
2010 Obligations, Series 2011 Obligations and the TIFIA Bond (based on the scheduled
payments) as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total Amount
. 2012‘ $ 100,000 3 \ 42,938,969 § 43,03'8,969 ,
2013 150,000 45,754,275 45,904,275
2014 200,000 46,033,326 46,233,326
2015 895,000 46,219,627 47,114,627
2016 2,019,404 39,621,981 : 41,641,385
2017 and thereafter 748,039,480 971,900,105 1,719,939,585

Total obligations § 751,403,884 §  1,192,468283 §$ 1,943,872,167

Below is a reconciliation of the principal payments to the balance sheet as of June 30, 2011:

Principal
Total obligations $ 751,403,884
Add: Unamortized Premium / Discount 9,096,668
Total Series 2005 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
Obligations, Series 2011 Obligations and TIFIA Bond $ 760,500,552
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Rebatable Arbitrage

Current federal income tax law and the bond indentures require that certain arbitrage profits
earned on nonpurpose investments attributable to outstanding tax-exempt bonds must be rebated
to the U.8. Treasury. The Authority has not accrued any rebatable arbitrage as of June 30, 2011.

Risk Management

In conjunction with its normal operations, the Authority is exposed to various risks related to the
damage or destruction of its assets from both natural and man-made occurrences, tort/liability
claims, errors and omissions claims and professional liability claims. As a result of these
exposures, the Authotity carries insurance with a governmental risk pool under an “all risks”
policy. All categories of insurance coverage in place were either maintained at current levels or
increased as to overall limits of coverage and reduction of self-retained risk so as to reduce the
overall exposure of risk to the Awuthority. There were no settlements in excess of insurance
coverage in 2011 and 2010.

Employee Retirement Plan

Plan Description - The Authority participates in the Texas County and District Retirement
System (the System). The System is a non-profit public trust providing pension, disability and
death benefits for the eligible employees of participating counties and districts. The System was
established by legislative act in 1967 under authority of Article XVI of the Texas Constitution.
The TCDRS Act (Subtitle F, Title 8, Texas Government Code) is the basis for the System
administration, The System issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Plan. That annual report may
be downloaded at http://www.tcdys.com. ' '

Funding Pelicy - Plan members and the Authority are required to coniribute at a rate set by
statute. The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Authority are established and
may be amended. For 2011 and 2010, the coniribution rate for the Plan members was 7.0% of
gross pay. The Authority pays a matching portion to the defined contribution pension plan
totaling 14.50% and 14.50% of gross pay for 2011 and 2010, respectively, which totaled
$250,475 and $224,930 for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances
Receivables are comprised of current intergovernmental receivables, representing 100% of the

balance at June 30, 2011 and 2010. Payable balances are comprised of 100% current payables to
contractors and vendors at June 30, 2011 and 2010.
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Related Party

The Chief Financial Officer of the Authority is the President of The Texas Short Term Asset
Reserve Fund (“TexSTAR”). TexSTAR is a local government investment pool organized under
the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, and the
Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. The Authority has
investments of $31,106,287 and $40,365,479 in TexSTAR as of June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

On July 15, 2005, the Authority entered into a 7-year lease agreement for office space at 301
Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas. The aggregate future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2012 $ 106,491
2013 62,120
$ 168611

The Authority’s total rental expense for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 amounted to $185,771 and
$185,354, respectively.

Due from Other Agencies

Due from other agencies is comprised of amounts due from other Texas tolling authorities related
to toll tag transactions on the Authority’s toll road. The Authority does not issue toll tags;
however, the Authority has contracted with the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDot) to
handle customer service and operations related to the toll tag transactions. As of June 30, 2011
and 2010, the receivable from the TxDot authority comprises approximately 88% and 94%,
respectively, of the total balance due from otheer agencies, respectively, as follows.

2011 2010
TxDot $ 5,158,130 §$§ 5,874,267
Other Agencies 722,606 362,021

Total $ 5,880,736 $§ 6,236,288
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CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Supplemental Schedule - Indenture Cash Flow and Debt Service Coverage
For the year ended June 30, 2011

Toll Revenues $ 21,458,000
Other Revenues 2,383 !
Interest Income Available to Pay Debt Service 239,771
Total Revenues 21,700,154
Less: System Operating Expenses (5,848,981)
Revenues Available for Rate Covenant and
Additional Bonds Tests 15,851,173
Net Senior Lien Debt Service $ 7,439,500
Net Subordinate Lien Debt Service L -
Total Net Debt Service 7,439,500

Debt Service Coverage Ratio for Rate
Covenant and Additional Bonds Test

Senior Lien Obligations 2.13
Senior and Subordinate Lien Obligations 2.13.
Less: System Maintenance Expenses (984,494)
Revenues Available for Debt Service 14,866,679

Debt Service Coverage Ratios for
Revenues Available for Debt Service

Senior Lien Obligations 2.00
Senior and Subordinate Lien Obligations 2.00
Less: Total Net Debt Service (7,439,500)
Less: Deposits to Renewal and Replacement Fund -
Less: Debt Service Payments on Other Obligations (1,243,667) *
Annual Excess b ! $ 6,183,512 '

Grant revenues of approximately $32 million is excluded from "Other Revenues" as
such grant revenues are restricted for purposes other than debt service obligations.

The amount shown is net of any federal subsidy payments received and used to pay
debt service on Other Obligations.
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GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION NO. 11-133

APPROVING A SPONSORSHIP AND ADVERTISING AGREEMENT WITH HICKS
CEDAR PARK LLC RELATING TO EVENTS AT THE CEDAR PARK CENTER

WHEREAS, because of the proximity of the Cedar Park Center to the 183 A Expressway, events
at the Cedar Park Center such as the home games of the Texas Stars Hockey Club and the Austin
Toros basketball team generate significant traffic and toll revenue from customers who travel to
the event using the 183A Expressway; and

WHEREAS, some drivers who attend events at the Cedar Park Center may be unaware of the
benefits of using the 183 A Expressway to travel to and from the Cedar Park Center; and

WHEREAS, being a sponsor of the Texas Stars games and other events at the Cedar Park Center
benefits the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority by providing advertising and goodwill
for the 183 A Expressway.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the proposed Sponsorship Agreement with Hicks
Cedar Park LL.C, is approved, in the form or substantially the form attached as Attachment A to
this resolution; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director is authorized to finalize and execute
the Sponsorship Agreement on behalf of CTRMA in the form or substantlally the same form as
Attachment A to thi$ resolution.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authotity on the 26
day of October, 2011.

Submitted and reviewed by: Approved:

?;ndrewMa.rtin Ray A2 Wilkerson )
General Counsel for the Chairitan, Board of Directors
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority Resolution Number: 11-133

Date Passed; 10/26/11
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ATTACHMENT “A” TO RESOLUTION 11-133

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT WITH HICKS CEDAR PARK LL.C

[on the following 6 pages]
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SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT

THIS SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of November 1, 2011 (the “Effective
Date”) between Hicks Cedar Park LLC (“HCP”) and Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (“Sponsor™).

RECITALS

A, HCP has the right to market certain promotional opportunities for the Dallas Stars’ minor league hockey
team affiliate, the Texas Stars Hockey Club (the “Texas Stars™), which plays its home games (“Games®) in the arena
known as Cedar Park Center (“CPC™); and

B. HCP has the right to market certain promotional opportunities for all events (the “Events™) to be held at
CPC, which shall include all Austin Toros home games and all third party events (e.g., concerts) open to the public,
excluding the Games; and

C. Sponsor desires to purchase from HCP the right to display certain advertising and to participate in certain
promotions in conjunction with the Games and Events.

Tn consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated as substantive provisions of this Agreement, and
for other valuable consideration, HCP and Sponsor hereby agree as follows:

1. Grant of Advertising Rights. HCP hereby grants to Sponsor, and Sponsor hereby accepts, the non-
exclusive rights and obligations set forth in this paragraph 1 during the Term, subject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement. All Adverlising Copy to be displayed as prov1ded in this Agreement sha111 be limited to advertlsmg
for the following products or services (the “Products™): Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority services and '
products.

a) LED Video Ring, During Games and Events, Sponsor will receive identification of its
Advertising Copy on the following Sign: the LED Video Ring. The Ring will run Advertising Copy during all
Games and Events, subject to blackouts at reasonable times (e.g., when all CPC lighting is turned down at the
beginning of some Games and Events). All Advertising Copy is subject to HCP’s prior approval.

b) Premium Giveaway. During one (1) Game during the Term, Sponsor will have the right
and obligation to distribute t-shirts as premium giveaway items. The premium items will be distributed to the
first TBD number of fans of the mutually-agreed upon game. Sponsor will be responsible for the cost of
producing the premium items, which cost is included in the Rights Fee. All premium items are subject to HCP’s
prior approval and AHL regulations.

c) Community Event Participation. During the Term, HCP agrees to have the Texas Stars
represented in a TBD manner af the Mobility Authority’s Blockhouse Creek community event, subject to player and
[ce Girl availability and staffing discretion. HCP will use good faith efforts to mutually-agree with Sponsor on the
manner and type of the Texas Stars’ participation in the event. For the Community Event, HCP will also provide the
following giveaway items:
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i Texas Stars Glass Seats. During one (1) Texas Stars regular-season game
during the Term, Sponsor will receive four (4) glass seats at CPC. In addition,
Sponsor will receive food vouchers for four (4) hot dogs and four (4) sodas.

ii. Authentic Jersey. Sponsor will receive one (1) team autographed, authentic,
Texas Stars hockey jersey. Size and color of jersey are subject to HCP discretion
and availability.

il Promotional Tickets. During the Term, for Sponsor’s promotional use, HCP
will provide to Sponsor one-hundred (100) Texas Stars regular season tickets.
Dates and seat locations will be at HCP’s sole discretion. HCP must prior
approve the manner of promeotional use.

2, Term of Agreement. Subject to Force Majeure and other terms and conditions set forth in this
Apgreement, this Agreement will begin on November 1, 2011, and continue through June 30, 2012 unless
terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of this Agreement (the “Term”).

3. Rights Fee. Sponsor shall pay to HCP a fee of $30,000.00 (the “Rights Fee™). The Rights Fee shall be
payable within sixty (60) days following Sponsor’s receipt of invoices sent to Sponsor by HCP in accordance with
the following invoice schedule:

11/15/2011 $30,000.00

Rights Fee payment must be made by check or direct funds transfer. Credit card payments are allowed only with
HCP’s prior approval, in which instance, a 3% credit card fee will be added to the Rights Fee and any other
amounts charged. The Rights Fee shall be net of any agency fees or commissions that may be payable by
Sponsor to its advertising agencies. All taxes and other charges imposed on Sponsor in connection with this
Agreement shall be borne by Sponsor and shall not be deducted from the Rights Fee. Any Rights Fee not paid to
HCP by the dates required shall be subject to interest at the annual rate equal to 12%, compounded monthly.
Sponsor shall, at all times and in the manner provided in this Agreement, pay the Rights Fee and any other monetary
obligation owed to HCP pursuant to this Agreement without offset, abatement, demand, set-off or counter glaim.
Sponsor hereby irrevocably waives any right to claim offset, abatement, demand, set-off or counter claim other than
as may be pursuant to a final judgment.

4, Provisions Regarding Advertising Copy. Sponsor shall produce the Advertising Copy in accordance
with the deadlines and specifications established by HCP. Sponsor is solely responsible for the cost and
administration of designing, preparing, installing, maintaining and removing the Advertising Copy described in
paragraph 1. The design, layout, elevation, configuration and content of all Advertising Copy shall be subject to
HCP’s prior approval, which may be granted or withheld at HCP's reasonable discretion. HCP shall have the
right to disapprove any Advertising Copy if, among other possible reasons for disapproval, HCP determines in
good faith that such Advertising Copy (i) is of substandard technical quality; (ii) does not conform to HCP’s
specifications for the Signs, publications or stated design preferences, (iii) does not comply with applicable
government standards or regulations or with applicable hockey league rules, regulations or policies, or (iv) is in
bad taste or otherwise reasonably objectionable. Sponsor shall have the right to modify or change any Advertising
Copy displayed as provided in this Agreement, subject to HCP’s right of approval, at Sponsor’s expense. HCP may
need to cover certain Advertising Copy and Signs at CPC for certain Games and Events, which shall be at HCP’s
reasonable discretion.

5. Trademarks, Sponsor’s trademarks, service marks, brand names, logos, label designs, Products
identification, decals and artwotk displayed on the Advertising Copy, and all trademark rights or copyrights in such
Advertising Copy, shall remain the exclusive property of Sponsor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, HCP may use
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Sponsor’s corporate or trade names, frademarks, service marks, logos or other proprietary symbols of Sponsor to
fulfill this Agreement, subject to Sponsor’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, The Texas Stars’
names, logos, trademarks and service marks shall be and remain the exclusive property of HCP. Sponsor shall not
have the right to use or reproduce the corporate or trade names, trademarks, service marks, logos or other
proprietary symbols of the Texas Stars without HICP’s prior written consent, which may be withheld at HCP’s
discretion. All advertising or promotional materials displayed or distributed by Sponsor in conjunction with the
Texas Stars’ names, logos, trademarks or service marks shall be subject to HCP’s prior written approval. During the
Term, if either party becomes aware of any unauthorized use or other infringement of the other party’s names, logos,
trademarks and/or service marks, then such party shall promptly give written notice thereof to the other party.

6. Default, If either party breaches its obligations under this Agreement {other than a delay or interruption in
fulfillment of HCP’s obligations as a result of a Force Majeure as defined in paragraph 7 below), including without
limitation a failure to make any payments as required by this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall have the
option to immediately cease all performance under this Agreement. If such default is the failure by Sponsor to pay
the Rights Fee or any other monetary obligations when due under this Agreement, HCP may exercise its right to
terminate this Agreement immediately and pursue any available remedies immediately upon written notice to
Sponsor. In the case of any other breach under this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall also have the right to
terminate this Agreement by providing the defaulting party with written notice of the alleged default and 30 days
within which to cure the default to the reasonable satisfaction of the non-defaulting party. If the defaulting party fails
to cure the default to the reasonable satisfaction of the non-defaulting party within 30 days after the date such
written notice is given, the non-defaulting party may, in addition to any other remedies which may be available to it
under the circumstances, terminate this Agreement effective immediately by providing written notice of such
termination to the defaulting party.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, HCP may terminate this Agreement with no penalty in order to
enter into a naming rights agreement for CPC with another sponsor in the same or similar Products category to
Sponsor, provided that HCP shall provide ten (10) days written notice to Sponsor and only the portion of the
Rights Fees due through the termination date shall be due from Sponsor.

7. Force Majeure. For the purposes of this Agreement, a “Force Majeure” shall mean any event or cause
beyond FICP’s reasonable control, (including without limitgtion, construction delays, fire, flood, or other
casualty, explosions, damage by third parties whether negligently or intentionally caused, strikes, work
stoppages, picketing, lockouts and/or any other concerted action by any employees or any labor organization,
acts of God or other casualties, or the laws or actions of any governmental authority), as a result of which at any
time HCP is unable to grant any of the rights described in paragraph 1 of this Agreement or perform any of its
obligations hereunder. If a Force Majeure occurs during the Term, HCP and Sponsor shall mutually agtee on one of
the following alternatives: (i) terminate this Agreement and return all or a pro-rata portion of the Rights Fee, as
appropriate, to Sponsor or (ii) provide alternate advertising and promotional rights of substantially equivalent value
o Sponsor either during or after the Term.

8. Subservience. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be subject
and subordinate to all Laws, and to all leases, subleases and other agreements under which HCP shall occupy or
operate CPC or by which HCP is bound (including, but not limited to, the Lease and Development Agreement
between the City of Cedar Park and HCP dated February 20, 2008, as amended from time to time), either presently
in existence or as may be enacted, made or enforced from time to time after the effective date of this Agreement,
including the regulations and actions of all governmental agencies or commissions. Notwithstanding any other
provisions of this Agreement, the promotional licensing rights and all other rights granted by HCP to Sponsor
pursuant to this Agreement are subject and subordinate to any and all promotional licensing, advertising and
sponsorship agreements entered into by the hockey league and/or any other authorized agent collectively on behalf
of the member clubs of the hockey league. If applicable, this Agreement shall terminate prior to the expiration of the
Term upon the effective date of any ruling, ordinance, rule or regulation of any local, state or federal governmental
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agency or other governmental body having jurisdiction over either party, CPC, or the Products, or of the hockey
league, declaring the advertising of the Products, the performance of the promotion or the display of the Advertising
Copy as provided in this Agreement to be unlawful or prohibited. If this Agreement is terminated as provided in this
paragraph 8, the Rights Fees paid by Sponsor shall be pro-rated and appropriate refunds shall be made by HCP, to
be computed on the same basis as provided in paragraph 7.

9. Release, Indemnification, No Representations, Insurance. Sponsor assumes full responsibility and
liability for the content of the Advertising Copy and for all other work performed or required to be performed by
Spensor under this Agreement, and agrees that all of the foregoing shall be at Sponsor’s sole risk, To the exient
permitted by law, Sponsor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Hicks Cedar Park LLC, Dallas Stars,
L.P., HSG Partnership Holdings, LLC, Hicks, Inc., Hicks Sports Group Holdings LLC, Hicks Sports Group LLC
and the City of Cedar Park and each of their subsidiaries, affiliates, partners, officers, directors, employees,
sharcholders, agents, other representatives, successors and assigns, (collectively the “ICP Parties™), from and
against any losses, liabilities, damages, and judgments (collectively, “Claims™), including, without limitation,
attorneys’ fees, arising out of: (i) the use of any trademark, service mark, logo, design and other intellectual property
right materials provided by Sponsor; (i) Sponsor’s Advertising Copy and Products; (iii) any work performed by
Sponsor or its agents; and (iv) any breach of this Agreement by Sponsor and all costs incurred by the HCP Parties
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees) as a result of any breach of this Agreement, the enforcement of this
Agreement against Sponsor or the collection from Sponsor of any amounts due hereunder. Sponsor fully waives and
releases the HCP Parties from any and all Claims arising out of or related to any matter described in clauses (i)
through (iv) above, except as provided in Section 17. If requested by HCP, Sponsor shall present to HCP
satisfactory proof of insurance (including general liability insurance for bodily injury or death or property damage)
adequate by its terms to fully satisfy Sponsor’s obligations hereunder, and Sponsor shall, if so requested by HCP,
include the HCP Parties as additional insureds. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, HCP has made no
representations or warranties of any kind, either, expressed, implied or statutory, all of which are hereby waived
by Sponsor,

10. Assignment, HCP may assign any of its rights and duties without Sponsot’s approval or notice to Sponsor.
Sponsor may not assign this Agreement without HCP’s prior wriften consent, which may be granted or withheld at
HCP’s reasonable discretion. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties and their permitted successors and assigns. v '

11. Confidentiality. Subject to Sponsor’s obligations under the Texas Public Information Act, the Texas Open
Meetings Act, and other laws, the parties acknowledge and agree that HCP assets that this Agreement and ifs terms
are confidential, and contain proprietary commercial and financial information of HCP. Neither HCP nor Sponsor
shall disclose copies of this Agreement or the terms without the prior written consent of the other party, unless the
disclosure is made for a legitimate business purpose or compelled by legal process, including without limitation the
Texas Public Information Act and Texas Open Meetings Act. Sponsor understands that HCP may provide copies of
this Agreement and disclose the terms of this Agreement to the hockey league and consents to such disclosure.

12, Governing Law & Exclusive Venue, THIS AGREEMENT IS GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITHI THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, WITHOUT REGARD TO
CONFLICT-OF-LAWS PRINCIPLES. THE EXCLUSIVE VENUE FOR ANY PROCEEDING IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS.

13. Notices. All notices or other communications which are required or contemplated by this Agreement
(“Notices™) shall be in writing. All Notices of or concerning default or termination of this Agreement shall be sent
by United States certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. All other Notices may be sent by facsimile,
hand delivery, e<mail or mail. Mailed notices shall be sent to:
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Ifto HCP: Hicks Cedar Park LLC
2100 Avenue of the Stars
Cedar Park, Texas 78613
Attention: Rebecca Miller, Director — Partnership Fulfillment
With a copy to: David Webster — Legal Department

If to Sponsor; Central Texas Regional Mobile Authority
301 Congress Avenue, Suite 650
Austin, Texas 78701
Attention: Mike Heiligenstein

14. [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]

15. No Waiver, No delay of or omission in the exercise of any right, power or remedy accruing to any party
under this Agreement shall impair any such right, power or remedy, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any
future exercise of any right, power or remedy.

le. Severability. In case any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such
provision shall be severed from this Agreement. The validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

17, Attorneys® Fees. Should either party to this Agreement commence legal proceedings against the other to
enforce the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the party losing in such legal proceedings shall pay the
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses of the party prevailing in such legal proceedings as determined by the court

18. Relationship of Parties, This Agreement does not create any agency, partnership, joint venture or
employment relationship between the parties, The relationship of the parties shall be solely that of independent
contractors. Each party shall be solely responsible for the conduct of its respective agents and employees.

19. Integration Clause & Amendment. This Agreement is the final and exclusive expression of the
agreement among the parties hegeto with relation to the supject matter of this Agreepent, it being understood
that there are no oral representations, understandings or agreements covering the same subject matter. This
Agreement supersedes, and cannot be varied, contradicted or supplemented by evidence of any prior or
contemporaneous discussions, correspondence, or oral or written agreement. This Agreement may only be
amended by a written amendment, signed by both parties.

20. Sophistication of Parties. Each party represents that it is a sophisticated commercial party capable of
understanding all of the terms of this Agreement, that it has had an opportunity to review this Agreement with
its counsel, and that it enters this Agreement with full knowledge of the terms of the Agreement.

21. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms listed below shall have the following meanings:

a) Advertising Copy. “Advertising Copy” means advertising of the Products, including any words,
slogans, logos or designs constituting trademarks or service marks of Sponsor, whether or not registered, that are
displayed pursuant to this Agreement.

b) Laws. “Laws” means any and all federal, state or local laws or governmental rules, regulations,
ordinances or orders, and rules, regulations, orders, directives, bulletins, policies or restrictions.
c) Season. “Season” means all pre-season and regular hockey season Games played by Texas Stars at
CPC.
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d) Post-Season. “Post-Season” means all playoff Games played by the Texas Stars at CPC.

e) Signs. “Signs” means any advertising materials installed in advertising panels, as identified in
paragraph 1 of this Agreement.

22, Representations and Warranties of Sponsor, Sponsor represents and warrants that (a) the execution
of this Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary parties, (b) this Agreement constitutes the legal and
binding obligations of Sponsor and is enforceable against Sponsor in accordance with its terms, (¢) Sponsor has
the absolute and unrestricted right, power authority and capacity to execute this Agreement and to perform its
obligations, (d) Sponsor owns or has the right to use all trademarks, brand logos, label designs, product
identification, and artwork displayed in the Advertising Copy and on the Signs, (e) Sponsor is not subject to any
restrictive obligations imposed by former clients or any other person that would impair its ability to exercise its
best efforts in connection with this Agreement and (f) Sponsor’s Advertising Copy and Products comply with all
Laws.

Agreed to by:

CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

| LI ] ]

HICKS CEDAR PARK LLC,
a Texas limited liability company

By:

Authorized Representative

Date:
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GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION NO. 11-134

APPROVE A CHANGE ORDER WITH WEBBER LL.C TO ADD A SHARED-USE
PATH GAP PROJECT TO THE 183A PHASE II PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 09-81, dated December 17, 2009, the Board of Directors
awarded a construction contract for the 183A Phase II Project (the “Project”™) to W.W. Webber
LLC (“Webber”), and authorized and directed the Executive Director to finalize and execute a
contract with Webber for provision of those services; and

WHEREAS, Contract No. 10183A24601C for construction of the Project (the “Contract”) was
fully executed by CTRMA and Webber and became effective on February 1, 2010; and

WHERFEAS, CTRMA staff and its general engineering consultant have requested that Webber
prepare and submit a proposal to connect a gap between the 183A Phase I shared use path and
the Phase Il shared use path for the Project; and

WHEREAS, because the additional cost of Change Order No. 18 exceeds $150,000.00, the
Board of Directors must approve this proposed change order,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors approves the proposed
Change Order No. 18 for an additional amount not to exceed $918,876.92, in the form or

su|bstan1:ially the same form attached as Attachmqnt “A;” and . \

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Change Order No. 18 may be finalized and executed by the
Executive Director on behalf of CTRMA in the form or substantially the same form attached as
Attachment “A.”

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority on the 26"
day of October, 2011,

Submitted and reviewed by: Approved:

Andrew Martin Ray(A. Wilkerson

General Counsel for the Central Chairfan, Board of Directors
Texas Regional Mobility Authority Resolution Number: 11-134

Date Passed: 10/26/11
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ATTACHMENT “A” TO RESOLUTION 11-134

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER NO. 18 WITH WEBBER LLC

[on the following 7 pages)
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<4gf-‘~’> GENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
: GHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 18

B T Frefoct Namo 1834 Piraso il
1. CONTRACTOR: Webler LLC
7. Ghangoe Order Work Limils:  8UP0AP Sla322+19.27 {0 SUPGAP Sta 39410449 Copiract Name 1834 Plpso I}
SUP Phll §ta_837100 HUR PhIl §lg. 601400
3. type of Change{on federal-atd non-exenpl projoots): NI (MajorfMinor) Contravt
Award Dale Docomber 21, 2000
4, Reasons: 3K {Inorcler of importance - Primary first)
Gonfracy
6. Doscriba the work being revised: Numor: JOHIARAG0YC
Ga, Construction of Shared Usoe Path 103A Phase H GAP 8TA 322440.27 to 8TA
394+04.49

8, SUP Deslgn Gritorla Updatos (Ptan Rovision #44)

6. Work to he performed In accordance with lfems: & noted In Table B altached

7. Now or revised plan shest{e) are altachet and numbered; As provided via eBullder Change Requiest #8 (5a), RFIHO1 (Ba),
Transmittal #171 {6b}
8. New general notes to the contract are allached: (4 Yos [C1 Na

8, Now Speclal Provisions fo Hems N No. NIA and Special Spacifleation liemns 1093 are altachad,
Each signatery hereby warcants that each has the authority to execute this Change Qrdar (CO),
The following informatton must he provided

The contraclor must sl the Chaiga Ordor and, by dolng so, agrops to
waive any and afl claims for addilfanal compensation due to any wod olf othor

oxponses; oddiflonal chenges for timo, averhoad and prohl; or loss of e g ) A N Ny
caripensation as nrmm‘.’ m’ this chiange. Time Ext. % WNMM- Days added on this CO: S -

Amount added by this change order: 5998,876,02

For CTRVIA uso only:

QOriginal Contract Amount $75,792,413.92
Pravious Change Otders #0417 $25,820.%9
I‘yped!Printe{l Name ___“L,M ) i‘é% —|Amount added by this change order. $018,876.02
Rovised contract amount to-tdate; $76,736,820.03
Typed/Printad Tile kA Mﬁm}f‘wﬁ £,
RECOMMENED FOR EXECUTION ) 17
: /a//7// Wik tn TS 18 74|
INTB G AgeL.— bate/ CIRMA, Direclor B Edfiineering Data
. ¢ £l APPROVE REQUEST APPROVAL
o . 4
@ ) (// 7%4’%,
. 6 o Yot 16 /7///
HIN' m GEG Construction Manager Dale CTRMA, Genaral Counsel Date
CaABIACH e A BB G 1 APPROVED (] REQUEST APPROVAL
CTRMA, Execulive Dirsctor Date :

2] APPROVED [J REQUEST APPROVAL




FEULABIES CHTEITEE Ph | LOIEEEREL  $ STioL
FEI568L8 SE LT IS BC HZE H T-m..x. v T E¥) (00N HS0HE S 3t freril
[Tl [PFEE TrotE T S |oTE =] SO MRS ONLLS IS SACHEY! ST
QU 06T Eis | GUOGHEIS [ESTa) S [00Z = =] S JOHNYH U FITRISN] a0 Eioeeias]
0ELIT TS AW ELZ TS oTret AEES E) s ¥Z) 2did DRISYI LS
i K OZ 0% G oreE Eiil Seficf HTLYMT LSV, 0 B2 Bds VI NFCh
[egtecss TOYELEE DOELEE fairz = v SCUYTION IRk
s TSI IS 5T B s = 3 5 - TOISY i) [SONSS SALLOZL0UN RO JH10YE S=aL
[ OO L2125 OOESES Gt oUHE  |00Eas [iTs 3 TROLLNE Bsnd NI 2] 103150 O2d
| corosss GUOLE LT O 0565 [X QO REL S U5 TeES BEE va LIERESSY 2 10d G3d
GFTEGS I tess [ ER R B 3| =] 0I5 & 16 Lvoian &) NRH 995 9IS Oad
| CE 06 TS COULREs 0006YS oSt TOTER & [ [T 00T v TAIVS (EIEMBIL Lk WUZATIS NS Od WS 31950 154
|S0CZES_ [oooBrers  ipoSes CO56 DOBSEE < [renes %6 ER) (SIS (HOMEDT AL AVEdnS WS 08 WS SH
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. CHANGE ORDER REASON(S) CODE CHART

1. Daslgn Erer or Omisslon

incotiacl PSAE
Cthar

2. Dilfacing 8fte Condllions
{unforesoeable)

2F,
26,
2H.
2l
2J.

Oispute resolutlon (expense caused by condltfons and/oer resulling dalay)
Unavallahle materlal

New developimant {condilions changing alter PS&E completad)
Environmental remedialion

Miscellansous diffarence in site conditions {unfareseeable)ltam 9)

Slta conditions alterad by an act of nature

Unad]usled ullity (unforesenably)

‘Unacgulred Right-of-Way (unforeseeabla)

Additionat safely needs {unforeseeable)

Olher

3. CTRMA Convenienco

3A.
3B,
3c,
30,
3E.
3F.
30,
3H,
al.

3.
K.

M.

Dispute resalulion {not resulling from error In plans or dilfering site conditions)
Public ralations Improvemant

Implementation of a Valua Englnsering {inding

Achleveront of an early projact complalion

Reduction of future maintenance

Additional work daslred by the CTRIMA

Compliance regqulrements of naw laws andior policles

Cost savings oppantunily discovered during conslruction

Implantentation of Inysroved lechnolagy or belter process

Price adlustment on finlshed work (odce reduced In oxchangs for acceptance)
Addillon of stock account or malarlal supplied by alate provision

Revising safely work/measurgs desired by the CTRMA [}

Clher

4. Third Patly Accommiodalion

4B,
40,
40,

Fallure of 2 third pasly lo meet commilntont

Third parly reqiestad work

Compllance requdrenents of new laws andlor policles (impacting third parly)
Other

6, Contractor Convenlance

58,
5C,
0.
5E,

Conlractor oxercises option 1o cliznge the tralfie control plan
Conleactor tequested change I the sequanca andfor method of work
Payment for Partnerlng viorkshep

Additlonat safaly work/measures desirad by the conlractor

Olhes

8. Untimely ROWRliities

68,
8C.
lep.

Right-of-Way nal clear (third parly responsibility for ROW)
Rlght-of-Way not clear (Counly rasponsibilily for ROW)
Ullities nol ¢lear

Olher




SPEGIAL SPECIFICATION 531-XXX1

SIDEWALKS ~ BHARED USE PATH “GAP" GONSTRUCTION AND SHARED USIE
PATH DESIGN UPDATES

Description: Work to be performed in accordance with plans for construction of the
Shared Use Path "Gap" to connect the exisfing Shared Use Path at approximately RM
1431 to the Shared Use Path detailed in the criginal construction plans and incorporate
work to be performed in association with design modifications for the construction of the

Phase ll Shared Use Path.

Scope of Work: Construct an additional Shared Use Path to connect the "Gap”
helween the 183A Phase | Shared Use Path and the 183A Phase |l Shared Use Path
as detailed In the original construction plans and update the Phase || Shared Use Path
plans with new AASHTO design criteria. The construction of the Shared Use Path "Gap"
and all design modifications shall be per the plans, speclfications, and hotes as
provided to the contractor on 8/2/11 and 9/27/11, respectively, and as noted in this

change order.

Measurement and Payment: Item will be pald via a fixed price change order to the
work per Secllon 4.2 of the 183A Phase 1] contract.
] ]




General Notes
Shared Use Path “Gap” STA 322419.27 to STA 394+04.49

The completion and Final Acceptance of the construction of the Shared
Use Path "Gap” as shown in the plans provided to the contractor on 8/2/11 shall
be required as a condition of project Finat Acceptance to cccur not later than 90
days after the contract Substantial Completion date. This only pertains to the

Shared Use Path "Gap”.




2004 Specifications CS8J 0018-01-068

SPECIAL SPRCIFICATION
1093
Tree Protection in Constenction Aveas

4= Deseription. Protecl and assuie the continued good health of existing tvees identified on the

2

3,

d.

plans or directed by the Bngineer ns “to be profected”, Provide, install, maintain and ramove
upon completion of work, protective fences,

Protect all trees in the construction aren identified to be vetained in place as shown on the
plaus or as dircoted by the Engiueer,

Proteot all trees before any heavy equipment is ailowed on the site and maintain profections
in place for the dutation of the project,

Matevinls, All materials shall mest the applicable requirements indicated below for the
specified type of protection,

(1) Protective Fence. Furnish construction fence as shown on the plans or apprave by the
Engincer,

®) Construction Fence shall be 4 f1, high orange plastic mesh or approved equivalent
supported on ateel T-post a minimum of 6 fi, long,

(h) Wound Paint. Wound paint shall bo an appoved free dressing,

Constructlon Methods, Conduet all construction activities in such manner as to proteot ol
irees identified fu, the plans for protestion, - '

(1) Protective Fence, Unless otherwlse showss on fhe plans or as dirested by the Englneer,
furnish construction fence,

() Constuction Fence, Siretoh snooth galvanized wire fiom post to post across the top of
the fence and draw tight, Atlach plastic mesh to the posts and top wire with alurmimgm
tio wite or nylon ties, spaced at 3 1, intervals. Drive T-posts into the grotnd a
minimuta of {8 in,

Mensurement, Tree protection in econstruction will be measured by the methods as follows
aud as shown on the plans.

“Tree Protection (Protective Fence)(Plastic)” will be measured by the foot of protective
fence measured at the bottom of the fabyle along the fence fiom center to center of end posts
complele in place.

1-2 1093
06-10




Payment. The work perforined and materials furnished in accordance with this lient and
meastred as provided under “Measwement” will be paid for at the unit price bid for “Tyee
Protection (Protective Fenee)(Plnstic)”, This price shall be ful] compensation for all
manipulations, labar, equipment, materials, accessorles, and feidentals necessary o
complete the work,

2-2 1093
06-10




GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION NO. 11-135
ACCEPT MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

WHEREAS, the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (“CTRMA™) is empowered to
procure such goods and services as it deems necessary to assist with its operations and to study
and develop potential transportation projects, and is responsible to insure accurate financial
records are maintained using sound and acceptable financial practices; and

WHEREAS, close scrutiny of CTRMA expenditures for goods and services, including those
related to project development, as well as close scrutiny of CTRMA’s financial condition and
records is the responsibility of the Board of Directors and its designees through procedures the
Board may implement from time to time; and

WHEREAR, the Board of Directors has adopted policies and procedures intended to provide
strong fiscal oversight and which authorize the Executive Director, working with the CTRMA’s
Chief Financial Officer, to review invoices, approve disbursements, and prepare and maintain
accurate financial records and reports; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director, working with the Chief Financial Officer, has reviewed and
authorized the disbursements necessary for the month of September, 2011, and has caused a
Financi‘al Report to be preparec‘i which is attached to th.is resolution as Attachment “A.”

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors accepts the Financial
Report for September, 2011, attached as Attachment “A” to this resolution.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority on the 26th
day of October, 2011.

Submitted and reviewed by: Approved:

Andrew Martin Ray A« Wilkerson

General Counsel for the Central Chairmmin, Board of Directors
Texas Regional Mobility Authority Resolution Number: 11-135

Date Passed: 10/26/2011



Exhibit A

Financial Report for September, 2011



As of

Assets

Current Assets
Cash in Regions Operating Account

Cash In TexSTAR

Regions Payroll Account
Restricted cash/cash equivalents
Fidelity Government MMA
Restricted Cash-TexStar

Regicns SIB account

Overpayment accounts

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Balance Sheet

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable
Due From Other Funds
Due From TTA
Due From NTTA
Due From HCTRA
Due From TxDOT
Due From Federal Government
Interest Receivable

Total Receivables
Short Term Investments
Treasuries

Certificates of Deposit

Investment in Government Agencies
Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid Insurance
Total Current Assets

Construction Work In Process

Fixed Assets
Comguters{net) !
Computer Software(net)
Furniture and Fixtures(net)
Equipment(net)

Autos and Trucks(net)
Buildings and Toll Facilities{net}
Highways and Bridges(net)
Communication Equipment(net)
Toll Equipment(net)

Signs{net)

Land Improvements(net)

Right of Way

Leasehold Improvements

Total Fixed Assets

Long Terim Investments
GIC (Restricted )
Agencies-LT

Other Assets
Security Deposits
Intangible Assets
Total Bond Issuance Costs

Total Assets

September 30, 2011
140,197
41,808
4,288
16,332,278
86,035,743
0
21,345
82,435,460
48,514
0
{79,991)
37,399
120,828
5,859,614
463,466
381,372
6,831,200
4,549,017
3,000,000
12,308,580.9
1,855
0
109,266,111
231,055,636
' 29,590
981,673
17,503
41,991
26,443
6,299,991
176,477,720
1,094,559
2,429,909
5,055,776
1,161,903
24,683,553
64,384
218,364,995
247,157,994
44,308,040
8,644
650
15,944 458
866,106,527

September 30, 2010

231,903
57,720
1,162
4,688,500
88,343,016
17,443,963
12,067

110,778,322
102428
108,340
586,908
32,432
55,780
5,562,171
466,420
148,831

7,043,309

3,100,000

13,063,295

4,002

133,988,928

92,919,670

41,052

2,177,275

27,171

56,369

2,950

6,476,550

181,444,927

1,274,802

2,967,717

5,189,044

933,825

23,683,553

63,945

224,339,180

89,544 586

0

9,483

650

11,011,783

551,814,280




Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Overpayments

Interest Payable

Due to other Funds
TCERS Payable

Due to other Entities
Due to State of Texas
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities

Accrued Vac & Sick Leave Paybl

Retainage Payable

Tot Sr Lien Rev Bond Pay Pre/D 1,253,365

183,088
22,024
11,386,420
0

20,207
10,379
2,113
11,633,231

188,813
12,442
4,735,594
184,367
34,717

0

805
5,156,539

Subordinated Lien Bond 2010
Subordinated Lien Bond 2011
Sub Lien Bond 2011 Prem/Disc
TIFIA note 2008 '
2010 Regions BAB's Payable
2009 State Infrastructure loan
Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets Section
Contributed Capital
Net Assets beginning

Current Year Operations
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

413,815
1,655

45,000,000
70,000,000

(2,148,305)

77,626,562
0

0
770,123,966

365,641
134,317
5,144,531

45,000,000
0

74,978,988
59,730,000
32,389,798
486,353,495

781,757,197

491,510,034

18,334,846
61,930,780

4,083,705

18,334,846
37,756,819

4,212,582

66,014,485

41,969,401

866,106,527

551,814,280
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Summary 10/20/11
Magcintosh HD:Users:melissahurst: Decuments:Microsoft User Data:Saved Attachments: [September 2011-Income Statement.xlsx]Report

INVESTMENTS by FUND

Balance
Saptember 30, 2011

Renewal & Replacement Fund TexSTAR 66,077,559.20

TexSTAR 659,833.47 cD's 3,000,000,00

Fidelity 0.66 Fidelity 15,941,084.61

Agencies 659,834.13 518 0.¢0
TxDOT Grant Fund Agencles 61,165,220.24

TexSTAR 4,0M2,717.22 Bayerische GIC 247 ,157,837.67

Fidelity 0.00

Agencles 5,024,554.53 9,437,271.75 ’ $  393,341,701.72
Subordinate Lien DS Fund 05

Fidelity 993,059.33 993,059.33
Debt Service Resarve Fund 05

TexSTAR 40,033,553.84

Fidelity 732.55

CD's 3,000,000.00

Agencies 43,034,286.39
Debt Service Fund 05

Fidelity 2,012,641.20 2,012,641.20
2011 Debt Service Acct

Fidelity 2,630.92 2,630.92
2010 Senior Lien DSF

TexSTAR 0.15

Fidelity 0.00 0.15
2011 Sub Debt DSRF

Fidelity 7,000,122.76 7,000,122.76
Operating Fund

TexSTAR 41,805.86

TexSTAR-Trustes 430,869.79

Fidelity 0.00

Reglen's SIB Loan MMA 0.00 472,675.65
Revenue Fund

TexSTAR 67.25

Fidelity 1,155,043.25 1,155,110.50
Ganeral Fund

TexSTAR 5,978,973.28

Fidelity 9,880.25 5,988,853.53
2010 Senior Llen Capltallzed Interest

Fidelity 2,081.72

TexSTAR 842,24

Bayerische GIC 5,122,332.54 5,125,256.50
2010-1 Sub Lien Capitalized Interest

Fidelity 0.55

TexSTAR 420.00

Bayerische GIC 1,317,165.66 1,317,586.21
2010-2 Sub Lien Capitalized Interest

TexSTAR 126.76

Fidelity 2,517.80

Bayerische GIC 339,776.13 342,720,69
2011 Sr Capitalized Inferest Fund ! ' '

Fldelity 256,278.83

Agencies 44,148,870.62 44,405,149.45
2011 Sub Capitalized Interest Fund

Fidelity 105,376.18

Agencigs 11,601,795.09 1,707,171.27
2010-1 Sub BABs subsidy

Fidelity 13.66 13.66
2010-2 Sub BABs subsidy

Fldellty 213,136.61 213,136.61
2010 Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund

TexSTAR 6,755,730.35

Fidelity 2,765,286.98

Agencigs 9,521,0M7.33
2010-28ub Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund

TexSTAR 710,366.59

Fidelity 25,478.69

Agencies 390,000.00 1,126,345.28
2010-1Sub Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund

TexSTAR 2,504,041.65

Fidelity 1,343,945.77

Agencles 3,847,987.42
2010~1 Sub Lien Projects Fund

TexSTAR 1,004,170.45

Fidellty 29,962,110 1,034,132.55
2010 Senior Lien Construction Fund

TexSTAR 119

Fidelity 1,24

Bayerische GIC 31,282,731.46 31,282,733.89
2011 Sub Deht Project fund

Bayerische GIC 47,959,809.50

Fidelity 0,10 47,959,809.60
2011 Senior Lien Project Fund

TexSTAR 3,543,539.11

Fidality 22,593.46

Bayerische GIC 1861,136,022,38 164,702,154.85

$ 393,341,701.72
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Performance
As of September 30, 2011 September Averages

Current Invested Balance $5,218,150,511.94  Average Invested Balance $4,835,986,113.35
Weighted Average Maturity (1) 40 Days  Average Monthly Yield, on a simple basis 0.0906%
Weighted Average Maturity (2) 67 Days  Average Weighted Average Maturity (1)* 48 Days
Net Asset Value 1.000100  Average Weighted Average Maturity (2)* 76 Days
Totat Number of Participants 741 Definition of Weigiiied Smerage Maturity (1) & (2) '
Management Fee on Invested Balance 0.05%*  m The wei%Ghted average maturity calcubation uses the SEC Rule 2a-7 definticn for stated
. maturily for any floaling ale Mstrument held in the portfollo fo delenming the welghted
intersast Distributed $558,364.49 average maluity for the poal, This Rule specifies that a variable rate instrument fo be
! paid in 397 calendar days or tess shell be deemed o have a maturity equal 1o the period

Management Fee Collected $198,730.08 remaining untl the next readjustment of the interest rate,
% of Portfolio Invested Beyond 1 Year B2 e oo e I il matuly ot any Toaling rate

: i *The max fee authorized for the TexSTAR Cash R Fund

standard & Poor's Current Rating A e et o ot e o B F
Rates raflact historical Information and are not an Indication of future parformance, co-administrators at 2ny time as provided for in the TexSTAR Information Statement.

New Participants
We would fike to welcome the following entities who joined the TexSTAR program in September:
#* Anna 18D * City of Bangs % Bella Vista MUD # lLake Forest Utility District
* Latexo 15D # Nueces County Hospital District

Holiday Reminder

' Please note that in observance of the Columbus Day holiday, TexSTAR will be closed Monday, October 10, 2041, All ACH +
transactions initiated on Friday, October 7th will settle on Tuesday, Qctober 11th.

In observance of the Veterans Day holiday, TexSTAR will be closed Friday, November 11, 2011. Al ACH transactions initiated on
Thursday, November 10ih will settle on Monday, November 14th.

Please plan accordingly for yvour fiquidity needs.

Economic Commentary

While the first haif of the year was tumultuous, the third quarter proved to be equally unsettied. Investors were on adge as uncertainty
over global economic growth and worries over the inability of palicymakers in the U.S. and Europe to tackle sovereign debt woes
caused significant volatility in markets. Congress brought the country to the brink of default as both political parties only agreed to
increase the debt limit at the last minute. However, this was not enough to keep S&P from downgrading the U.S. sovereign rating
one notch, from AAA to AA+. The Fed made important announcements at the August and September FOMC meetings, which were
met by dissent. At the August meeting, the Fed explicitly stated that policy rates would be held “exceptionally low" through at least
mid-2013. In September, the Fed announced “Operation Twist,” in an effort to "put downward pressure on longer-term interest
rates and make broader financial conditions more accommodative.” By the end of Juns 2012, the Fed will purchase $400 billion of
Treasuries with maturities betwean 8 and 30 years and sell an equal amount of Treasuries with maturities of 3 years or less. The
Fed went further, announcing it will reinvest principal payments from its agency debt and agency MBS holdings back into agency
MBS in an effort to “support conditions in mortgage markets.” Economic activity and confidence data appear to be diverging. This
implies that policy action must begin to have a positive impact on the reat economy or consumer spending will decline. Market
dynamics are most concerning, with risk aversion approaching levels not seen since the fourth quarter of 2008. In the U.S., the
political parties are at polar opposites in their approach to reigning in the budget deficit through tax increases andfor spending cuts.
This is particularly worrisome as lawmakers approach an upcoming due date of November 18th for the Super Committee's deficit
reduction recommendations. Given evidencs of contagion from the European sovereign debt crisis, as well as fiscal retrenchment
domestically, expected anemic GDP growth puts the U.S. precariously close to recession, the probability of which increases in 2012.
This information i3 an skcarpt from an econemic raporl dated Seplember 2011 provided to TexSTAR by JP Morgan Assst Maragemant, fnc., the invesiment manager of the TexSTAR poot,

For more information about TexSTAR, please visit our web site at www.fexstar.org.
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Average Book Market Net Number of
Month Rate Value Value Asset Value WAM (1)* WAM {2)* Participants
Sept 11 0.0006%  $5,218,150,511.94  $5,218,680 416.17 1.000100 46 76 741
Aug 11 = 0.0840%  4,773,140,074.88,  4,773628,030.81 1.000100 4 , 89 735
Jub11t 00746%  4,990,875,181.48'  4,991,02537%.13 1.000030 ' 38 55 Y735
Jun11  0.0889%  5280726,280.87  5.281,501501.41 1.000146 50 69 733
May 11 0.0863%  5566,580,016.75  5,567,478,247.07 1.000161 46 66 732
April  0.1108%  5861,130,480.00  5,662,108,871.87 1.000172 50 72 731
Mar11  0.1408%  50949,037,975.790  5,940,.804,553.22 1,000128 50 73 730
Feb11  0.1476%  6,548,224,886.40  6,548,880,605.37 1.000100 48 71 729
Jan11  0.1637% 6,541,049,111.05  6,541,464,771.26 1.000063 39 66 726
Dec10  0.1713%  5593,134,506.98  5,593,670,681.79 1.000091 47 79 723
Novi10  0.1883%  5,143,274,22856  5,143635.927.81 1.000070 52 81 721
Oct 10 0.2002%  5,024,200,466.22 5,024,647 653,30 1.000088 49 74 719

Portfolio Asset_Summary as of September 30, 2011

Book Value Market Value
Uninvested Balance 3 B848.10 3 64810
Accrual of Interest Income 598,468.05 599,468.05
Interest and Management Fees Payable (567,835.29) (567,835.29)
Payable for Investment Purchased 0.00 0.00

Repurchase Agreement
Government Securities

2,825,682,000.00
2,392,436,231.08

2,825,682,000.00
2,392,966,135.31

Total

$ 5,218,150,511.94

$ 5,218,680,416.17

Market value of collateral supporting the Repurchase Agreenments is atieast 102% ofthe Book Value. The portfolio is managed by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and the assets are safekep!
in & separate custodial account at the Federal Reserve Bank in the name of TexSTAR. The only source of payment to the Parligipants are the assets of TexSTAR. Thera is
no secondary source of payment for the paot such as insurance or guarantee. Should you require a copy of the porifolio, please contact TexSTAR Parlicipant Services,
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M0 Day T-Bill Rate MTexSTAR Rate

This malerfal is far Infonmation purposes only. This Information does not represent an offer 1 buy or selt & securily, The above rate information is-oblalned from saurcas thal are balleved to be relighle; howevar, s accuracy
oF completeness Saptember be subject ta changs. The TexSTAR management fee September ba walved In ull or In part at the discretion of Ihe TexSTAR co-adminisirators and the TexSTAR mta for the periad shown
raflects walver of faes. This table reprosents Ivasiment performancairelum 1o the custorner, net of faes, and Is not an indicafion of futura performance. An Investment in the securlly is notinsured or quarantaed by the
Fadaral Daposit Insurance Carporation or any alfier govemment agency. Allough the issuer seeks to praserva (e valua of an Invastmant at $1.00 per share, | 18 possible lo iose manay by Invasting In tha security.
Information about these and other program deteils are in the fund's Infarmation Siztement which should be read carefully before nvesling, The yleld on the 80-Day Traasury Bill ¢T-BIIl Yield™ Is shown for comparative
purposes only. YWhan comparing the investment setums of the TexSTAR pocl to the T-81ll Yield, you should know that the TexSTAR podl consist of allocations of specific diversified securitles 23 delafied In the respactive
Infermation Statements. The T-BIi Yiald ta taken from Bloomberg Finerice L. end represants tha daily ciosing yield on 1he then cumenl 90-cay T-BII.

Mny Mkt Fund  Daily Alocation TexSTAR Invested  Market Value  WAM WAM
Date Egjuiv, [SEC Std.] Factor Balange Per Share Days (1)* Days {2)*

9/1/12011 0.0854% 0.000002340 $4,737,569,832.71 1.000098 49 77
9/2/201 0.0811% 0.000002223 $4,737,119,850.82 1.000094 46 74
932011 0.0811% 0.000002223 $4,737,119,050.82 1.000004 48 74
/412011 0.0811% 0.000002223 $4,737,119,950.82 ,1.000094 48 , 74

' 9/5/2011 ' 0.0811% 0.000002223 $4,737,119,950.82 1.000094 vo48 74
9/6/2011 0.0992% 0.000002719 $4,682 428,872,51 1.000107 47 76
8/7/2011 0.0939% 0.000002573 $4,705,615,151.67 1.000102 50 78
9/8/2011 0.0910% 0.000002493 $4,745,659,101.66 1.000089 43 77
9/9/2011 0.0858% 0.000002351 $4,790,220,460.69 1.000070 45 78
1072011 0.0858% 0.000002351 $4,790,220,460.69 1.000070 46 78
9/M1/2011 0.0858% 0.000002351 $4,790,220,460.69 1.000070 46 78
9/12/2011 0.0831% 0.000002278 $4,798,623,249.66 1.000085 49 79
9/13/2011 0.0887% 0.000002430 $4,825,382 625.83 1.000077 48 79
9/14/201 0.0910% 0.0300002493 84,775,154 687.54 1.000079 50 81
915/201 0.1078% 0.000002954 $4,802,470,722.90 1.000080 49 79
9/16/2011 0.1031% 0.000002826 $4,791,849,650.75 1.000102 47 78
91712011 0.1031% 0.000002826 $4,791,848,650.75 1.000102 47 78
9/18/2011 0.1031% 0.000002826 $4,791,849,650.75 1.000102 47 78
9/19/2011 0.0968% 0.000002651 $4,780,623,468.09 1.000103 47 78
9/20/2011 0.1043% 0.000002857 $4,765,600,137.63 1.000116 49 79
9/21/2011 0.0975% 0.000002672 $4,758,1562,186.80 1.000118 49 79
9222011 0.0894% 0.000002448 $4,792,979,189.20 1.000096 48 78
9/23/2011 0.0938% 0.000002572 $4,884,739,228.26 1.000120 45 75
9/24/2011 0.0935% 0.000002572 $4,884,739,228.26 1.000120 45 75
9/25/20M1 0.0938% 0.000002572 $4,884,739,228.26 1.000120 45 75
912672011 0.1038% 0.000002846 $4,876,302,626.87 1.000118 45 75
9/27/2011 0.0898% 0.000002460 $4,905,537,806.07 1.000127 45 75
9/28/2011 0.0736% 0.000002017 $5,318,525,470.18 1.000127 41 68
9/29/2011 0.0594% 0.000001627 $5,241,899,936.75 1.000119 41 69
9/30/2011 0.0906% 0.000002483 $6,218,150,511.94 1.000100 40 67
Average 0.0906% 0.000002483 $4,835,986,113.35 46 78
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TexSTAR Board Members
\ ) +

L]
Wiliiam Chapman Central Taxas Regional Mobility Authority Governing Board President

Nell Lange City of Frisco Governing Board Vice President
Melinda Garreft Houston 18D Goveming Board Treasurer
Michael Barfolotta First Southwest Company Goveming Board Secrotary

Witl Williams JP Morgan Chase Goveming Board Asst. Sec./Treas.
Hardy Browder City of Cedar Hill Aclvisory Board

Oscar Cardenas Northside ISD Advisory Board

Stephen Fortenberry McKinney 1SD Advisory Board

Monte Mercer North Central TX Councll of Government  Advisory Board

Becky Brooks Government Resource Associates, LLC  Advisory Board

Len Santow Griggs & Sanfow Advisory Board

For more information contact TexSTAR Participant Services + 1800-TEX-STAR * www.iexstarorg

FirstSouthwestm J.P Morgan

A PlalnsCapital Company Assel Managemennt
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